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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
Overstock.com, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets (Unaudited)
(in thousands)
March 31,
2018

December 31,
2017

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories, net
Prepaid inventories, net
Prepaids and other current assets

$

Total current assets
Fixed assets, net
Intangible assets, net
Goodwill
Other long-term assets, net

259,569
447
21,798
12,471
858
22,091

$

317,234
126,765
24,653
22,058
35,564

Total assets

203,215
455
30,080
13,703
1,625
16,119
265,197
129,343
7,337
14,698
17,240

$

526,274

$

433,815

$

89,666
92,105
41,712
182

$

85,406
82,611
46,468
178

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Other current liabilities, net
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, net - related party
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 6)
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value, authorized shares - 5,000
Series A, issued and outstanding - 127 and 127
Series B, issued and outstanding - 555 and 555
Common stock, $0.0001 par value
Authorized shares - 100,000
Issued shares - 32,048 and 30,632
Outstanding shares - 28,866 and 27,497
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Treasury stock:
Shares at cost - 3,182 and 3,135

223,665
39,977
6,539

214,663
39,909
7,120

270,181

261,692

—
—

—
—

3
547,184
(300,561)
(595)

Equity attributable to stockholders of Overstock.com, Inc.
Equity attributable to noncontrolling interests
Total equity

3
494,732
(254,692)
(599)

(66,170)

(63,816)

179,861
76,232

175,628
(3,505)

256,093
$

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity
See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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526,274

172,123
$

433,815
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Overstock.com, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations (Unaudited)
(in thousands, except per share data)
Three months ended
March 31,
2018

Revenue, net
Direct
Partner and other

$

Total net revenue
Cost of goods sold
Direct (1)
Partner and other

2017

16,270
429,061

$

22,828
409,607

445,331

432,435

14,772
336,690

20,963
324,565

351,462

345,528

93,869

86,907

77,214
31,294
39,755

37,618
28,992
22,610

148,263

89,220

Operating loss
Interest income
Interest expense
Other expense, net

(54,394)
544
(874)
(9)

(2,313)
125
(710)
(3,724)

Loss before income taxes
Benefit from income taxes

(54,733)
(277)

(6,622)
(340)

Total cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing (1)
Technology (1)
General and administrative(1)
Total operating expenses

Consolidated net loss
Less: Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests

$

(54,456)
(3,547)

$

(6,282)
(379)

Net loss attributable to stockholders of Overstock.com, Inc.
Net loss per common share—basic:
Net loss attributable to common shares—basic
Weighted average common shares outstanding—basic
Net loss per common share—diluted:
Net loss attributable to common shares—diluted
Weighted average common shares outstanding—diluted
________________________________________

$

(50,909)

$

(5,903)

$

(1.74)
28,566

$

(0.23)
25,290

$

(1.74)
28,566

$

(0.23)
25,290

$

70
873
521
4,971

$

49
96
160
635

$

6,435

$

940

(1) Includes stock-based compensation as follows (Note 8):
Cost of goods sold — direct
Sales and marketing
Technology
General and administrative
Total
See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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Overstock.com, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss (Unaudited)
(in thousands)
Three months ended
March 31,
2018

Consolidated net loss
Other comprehensive loss:
Unrealized gain on cash flow hedges, net of expense for taxes of $0 and $95

$

2017

(54,456)

$

4

Other comprehensive income

(6,282)
149

4

149

Comprehensive loss
Less: Comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrolling interests

$

(54,452)
(3,547)

$

(6,133)
(379)

Comprehensive loss attributable to stockholders of Overstock.com, Inc.

$

(50,905)

$

(5,754)

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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Overstock.com, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity (Unaudited)
(in thousands)
Three months ended
March 31, 2018
Equity attributable to stockholders of Overstock.com, Inc.
Number of common shares issued
Balance at beginning of period

30,632

Common stock issued upon vesting of restricted stock

166

Exercise of stock warrants

1,250

Balance at end of period

32,048

Number of treasury stock shares
Balance at beginning of period

3,135

Tax withholding upon vesting of restricted stock

47

Balance at end of period

3,182

Total number of outstanding shares

28,866

Common stock

$

3

Number of Series A preferred shares issued and outstanding

127

Number of Series B preferred shares issued and outstanding

555

Preferred stock

$

—

$

494,732

Additional paid-in capital
Balance at beginning of period
Stock-based compensation to employees and directors

2,395

Exercise of stock warrants

50,562

Other

(505)

Balance at end of period

$

547,184

$

(254,692)

Accumulated deficit
Balance at beginning of period
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

5,040

Net loss attributable to stockholders of Overstock.com, Inc.

(50,909)

Balance at end of period

$

(300,561)

$

(599)

$

(595)

$

(63,816)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Balance at beginning of period
Net other comprehensive income

4

Balance at end of period
Treasury stock
Balance at beginning of period
Tax withholding upon vesting of restricted stock

(2,354)
Balance at end of period

(66,170)

Total equity attributable to stockholders of Overstock.com, Inc.

$

179,861

Equity attributable to noncontrolling interests
Balance at beginning of period

$

Proceeds from security token offering, net of offering costs (Note 2 - Noncontrolling Interest)

(3,505)
75,951

Stock-based compensation to employees and directors

4,040

Tax withholding upon vesting of restricted stock

(1,680)

Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests

(3,547)

Paid-in capital attributable to noncontrolling interests

4,468

Other

505

Total equity attributable to noncontrolling interests

$

76,232

Total equity

$

256,093

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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Overstock.com, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)
(in thousands)
Three months ended
March 31,
2018

Twelve months ended
March 31,

2017

2018

2017

Cash flows from operating activities:
Consolidated net loss

$

(54,456)

$

(6,282)

$

(160,096)

$

(8,128)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:
Depreciation of fixed assets
Amortization of intangible assets
Stock-based compensation to employees and directors
Deferred income taxes, net
Gain on investment in precious metals

6,581

7,698

27,731

28,792

918

945

3,972

3,815

6,435

940

9,572

4,863

(806)

65,738

(771)
(201)

(267)
—

—

(1,971)

Impairment of cryptocurrencies

8,793

—

8,793

Gain on sale of cryptocurrencies

(1,529)

—

(3,524)

Impairment of equity investment
Early extinguishment costs of long term debts

—

4,500

987

—
—
7,350

—

—

2,464

—

185

38

1,023

381

Accounts receivable, net

8,282

6,527

Inventories, net

1,232

1,211

Other
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:

Prepaid inventories, net
Prepaids and other current assets
Other long-term assets, net

(183)

(2,528)

5,255

1,713

1,880

(1,536)

767

(626)

1,471

(1,173)

(642)

(1,891)

(404)

(4,164)

(1,202)

(2,261)

Accounts payable

4,325

(20,456)

3,786

6,236

Accrued liabilities

9,274

(13,689)

10,652

16,583

284

(1,593)

6,565

(2,625)

Deferred revenue
Other long-term liabilities
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities

(216)
(10,182)

73
(23,097)

(144)

119

(22,306)

50,970

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of intangible assets

(9,181)

Proceeds from sale of precious metals

—

Investment in precious metals

—

Disbursement of note receivable

—

Investment in equity securities

(16,970)

Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired

(11,769)

Expenditures for fixed assets, including internal-use software and website development
Other
Net cash used in investing activities

(4,029)

—

(9,604)

—

11,917

—

—

—
1,610
(1,633)

(250)

(500)

(1,068)

(777)

(21,381)

(5,527)

—
(11,344)

(1)

(118)

(41,950)

(12,489)

(11,769)
(16,271)
187
(47,421)

43
(64,033)
(92)
(70,700)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments on capital lease obligations

(123)

—

Payments on finance obligations

—

Payments on interest swap

—

—

Proceeds from finance obligations

—

—

Proceeds from long-term debt

—

Payments on long-term debt

—

(817)

—
(187)

(206)
(14,499)
(1,535)

—
(2,348)
(422)

—

7,978

40,000

25,150

(45,579)

(187)

Payments of preferred dividends
—

—

(109)

—

Proceeds from exercise of stock options

—

654

10

1,473

Proceeds from rights offering, net of offering costs

—

—

—

7,591

Proceeds from issuance of stock warrants

—

—

6,462

—

50,562

—

150,562

—

—

62,978

Proceeds from exercise of stock warrants
Proceeds from security token offering, net of offering costs
62,073
Purchase of treasury stock
Payments of taxes withheld upon vesting of restricted stock
Payment of debt issuance costs

—
(4,034)
—

(10,000)
(822)
—

—
(4,441)
(670)

—
(10,000)
(1,354)
—

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of period
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of period

$

108,478

(11,172)

192,973

56,346

(46,758)

123,246

8,151

203,670

183,528

136,770

128,619

260,016

$

136,770

$

260,016

27,881

$

136,770

Continued on the following page
Overstock.com, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)
(Continued)
(in thousands)
Three months ended
March 31,
2018

Twelve months ended
March 31,

2017

2018

2017

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period:
Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized

$

Income taxes paid, net of refunds

789

$

7

646

$

—

3,083

$

494

1,636
859

Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Fixed assets, including internal-use software and website development, costs financed through
accounts payable and accrued liabilities

$

965

$

1,317

$

965

Equipment acquired under capital lease obligations

—

—

1,421

Capitalized interest cost

—

—

—

Change in value of cash flow hedge

—

(240)

200
13,878

Note receivable converted to equity investment
Cryptocurrency received in security token offering

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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$

1,317
—
66

(1,498)

(2,493)

—

1,568

2,850

—

13,878

—
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Overstock.com, Inc.
Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements
1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
As used herein, "Overstock," "Overstock.com," "O.co," "we," "our" and similar terms include Overstock.com, Inc. and its majority-owned subsidiaries,
unless the context indicates otherwise.
We have prepared the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission ("SEC") regarding interim financial reporting. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by
generally accepted accounting principles for complete financial statements and should be read in conjunction with Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations and our audited annual consolidated financial statements and related notes included in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017. The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments, consisting only of
normal recurring adjustments, which are, in our opinion, necessary for a fair presentation of results for the interim periods presented. Preparing financial
statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts that are reported in the consolidated financial statements and
accompanying disclosures. Although these estimates are based on our best knowledge of current events and actions that we may undertake in the future,
actual results may be different from the estimates. The results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2018 are not necessarily indicative of the
results to be expected for any future period or the full fiscal year.
For purposes of comparability, the presentation of certain immaterial amounts in the prior periods have been conformed with the current period
presentation. We retrospectively applied certain accounting standard updates as discussed in Note 2—Accounting Policies, Recently adopted accounting
standards.
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include our accounts and the accounts of our wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries.
All intercompany account balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosures of contingent liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and accompanying notes. Estimates are used for, but not limited to, investment valuation, receivables valuation, revenue recognition, sales returns, incentive
discount offers, inventory valuation, depreciable lives of fixed assets and internally-developed software, goodwill valuation, intangible asset valuation,
equity investment valuation, income taxes, stock-based compensation, performance-based compensation, self-funded health insurance liabilities and
contingencies. Actual results could differ materially from these estimates.
Cash equivalents
We classify all highly liquid instruments, including instruments with a remaining maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase, as cash
equivalents. Cash equivalents were $155.8 million and $25.5 million at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.
Restricted cash
We consider cash that is legally restricted and cash that is held as compensating balances for letter of credit arrangements and self-funded health
insurance as restricted cash.
8
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Fair value of financial instruments
We account for our assets and liabilities using a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are
observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect our market
assumptions. These two types of inputs have created the fair-value hierarchy below. This hierarchy requires us to minimize the use of unobservable inputs
and to use observable market data, if available, when determining fair value.
•
•
•

Level 1—Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets;
Level 2—Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not
active, and model-derived valuations in which all significant inputs and significant value drivers are observable in active markets; and
Level 3—Valuations derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs or significant value drivers are
unobservable.

Under GAAP, certain assets and liabilities are required to be recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. Our assets and liabilities that are adjusted to
fair value on a recurring basis are cash equivalents, trading securities, and deferred compensation liabilities.
The fair values of our cash equivalents, trading securities, and deferred compensation liabilities are determined using quoted market prices from
daily exchange traded markets on the closing price as of the balance sheet date and are classified as Level 1.
The following tables summarize our assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis using the following levels of inputs as of
March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 as indicated (in thousands):
p

Fair Value Measurements at March 31, 2018:
Total

Assets:
Cash equivalents - Money market mutual funds
Trading securities held in a "rabbi trust" (1)
Total assets
Liabilities:
Deferred compensation accrual "rabbi trust" (2)
Total liabilities

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

$

155,763
78

$

155,763
78

$

—
—

$

—
—

$

155,841

$

155,841

$

—

$

—

$

86

$

86

$

—

$

—

$

86

$

86

$

—

$

—

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2017:
Total

Assets:
Cash equivalents - Money market mutual funds
Trading securities held in a "rabbi trust" (1)
Total assets
Liabilities:
Deferred compensation accrual "rabbi trust" (2)
Total liabilities

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

$

25,455
74

$

25,455
74

$

—
—

$

—
—

$

25,529

$

25,529

$

—

$

—

$

92

$

92

$

—

$

—

$

92

$

92

$

—

$

—

___________________________________________
(1) — Trading securities held in a rabbi trust are included in Prepaids and other current assets and Other long-term assets, net in the consolidated
balance sheets.
(2) — Non-qualified deferred compensation in a rabbi trust is included in Accrued liabilities and Other long-term liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheets.
Our other financial instruments, including cash, restricted cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued liabilities, and debt are carried at
cost, which approximates their fair value.
9
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Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable consist primarily of trade amounts due from customers in the United States and from uncleared credit card transactions at period
end. Accounts receivable are recorded at invoiced amounts and do not bear interest.
Allowance for doubtful accounts
From time to time, we grant credit to some of our business customers on normal credit terms (typically 30 days). We maintain an allowance for
doubtful accounts receivable based upon our business customers' financial condition and payment history, and our historical collection experience and
expected collectability of accounts receivable. The allowance for doubtful accounts receivable was $1.4 million and $1.3 million at March 31, 2018 and
December 31, 2017, respectively.
Concentration of credit risk
Three banks held the majority of our cash and cash equivalents at March 31, 2018. Our cash equivalents primarily consist of money market
securities which are uninsured. We do not believe that, as a result of this concentration, we are subject to any unusual financial risk beyond the normal risk
associated with commercial banking relationships.
Inventories, net
Inventories, net include merchandise purchased for resale, which are accounted for using a standard costing system which approximates the first-infirst-out ("FIFO") method of accounting, and are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. We write down our inventory for damage or estimated
obsolescence and to lower of cost and net realizable value based upon assumptions about future demand market conditions and fulfillment costs. If actual
market conditions are less favorable than those projected by management, additional inventory write-downs may be required. Once established, the original
cost of the inventory less the related inventory allowance represents the new cost basis of such products. Reversal of the allowance is recognized only when
the related inventory has been sold or scrapped.
Prepaid inventories, net
Prepaid inventories, net represent inventories paid for in advance of receipt.
Prepaids and other current assets
Prepaids and other current assets represent expenses paid prior to receipt of the related goods or services, including advertising, license fees,
maintenance, packaging, insurance, and other miscellaneous costs, and cryptocurrency-denominated assets ("cryptocurrencies"). See Cryptocurrencies below.
Cryptocurrencies
We hold cryptocurrencies, such as bitcoin, which are included in Prepaids and other current assets in our consolidated balance sheets. Our
cryptocurrencies were $9.0 million and $1.5 million at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively, and are recorded at cost less impairment.
We recognize impairment on these assets caused by decreases in market value. Such impairment in the value of our cryptocurrencies is recorded in
General and administrative expense in our consolidated statements of operations. Impairments on cryptocurrencies were $8.8 million for the three months
ended March 31, 2018. There was no impairment on cryptocurrencies during the three months ended March 31, 2017.
Gains and losses realized upon sale of cryptocurrencies are also recorded in General and administrative expense in our consolidated statements of
operations. We occasionally use our cryptocurrencies to purchase other cryptocurrencies. Gains and losses realized with these non-cash transactions are also
recorded in General and administrative expense in our consolidated statements of operations and are also presented as an adjustment to reconcile
Consolidated net loss to Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities in our consolidated statement of cash flows. Realized gains on sale of
cryptocurrencies were $1.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018. There were no realized gains or losses on sale of cryptocurrencies during the
three months ended March 31, 2017.
10
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Fixed assets, net
Fixed assets, net include assets such as our corporate headquarters, land improvements, building machinery and equipment, furniture and equipment,
technology infrastructure, internal-use software, website development and leasehold improvements, which are recorded at cost and depreciated using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets or the term of the related capital lease, whichever is shorter, as follows:
Life
(years)

Building
Land improvements
Building machinery and equipment
Furniture and equipment
Computer hardware
Computer software

40
20
15-20
5-7
3-4
2-4

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the term of the related leases or estimated useful lives.
Included in fixed assets is the capitalized cost of internal-use software and website development, including software used to upgrade and enhance
our Website and processes supporting our business. We capitalize costs incurred during the application development stage of internal-use software and
amortize these costs over the estimated useful life of two to three years. Costs incurred related to design or maintenance of internal-use software are expensed
as incurred.
During the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, we capitalized $2.4 million and $3.5 million, respectively, of costs associated with
internal-use software and website development, both developed internally and acquired externally. Amortization of costs associated with internal-use
software and website development was $3.4 million and $4.3 million, respectively.
Depreciation expense is classified within the corresponding operating expense categories on the consolidated statements of operations as follows (in
thousands):
Three months ended
March 31,
2018

Cost of goods sold - direct
Technology
General and administrative
Total depreciation, including internal-use software and website development

2017

$

83
5,478
1,020

$

83
6,685
930

$

6,581

$

7,698

Total accumulated depreciation of fixed assets was $192.3 million and $186.4 million at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.
Upon sale or retirement of assets, cost and related accumulated depreciation and amortization are removed from the balance sheet and the resulting
gain or loss is reflected in the consolidated statements of operations.
Fixed assets included assets under capital leases were $1.8 million at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017. Accumulated depreciation related to
assets under capital leases was $602,000 and $458,000 at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.
Depreciation expense of assets recorded under capital leases was $144,000 and $1.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.
11
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Equity investments under ASC 321
At March 31, 2018, we held minority interests (less than 20%) in nine privately held entities. Our interests in these entities are accounted for under
ASC Topic 321, Investments - Equity Securities ("ASC 321") and included in Other long-term assets, net in our consolidated balance sheets. These
investments lack readily determinable fair values and are therefore measured at cost minus impairment, if any, plus or minus changes resulting from
observable price changes in orderly transactions for the identical or similar investment of the same issuer. Dividends received from such investments are
reported in current earnings. We review our investments individually for impairment by evaluating if events or circumstances have occurred that may
indicate the fair value of the investment is less than its carrying value. If such events or circumstances have occurred, we estimate the fair value of the
investment and recognize an impairment loss equal to the difference between the fair value of the investment and its carrying value. In such cases, the
estimated fair value of the investment is determined using unobservable inputs including assumptions by the investee's management including quantitative
information such as lower valuations in recently completed or proposed financings. These inputs are classified as Level 3. See Fair value of financial
instruments above. Because several of our investees are in the early startup or development stages, these entities are subject to potential changes in cash
flows, valuation, and inability to attract new investors which may be necessary for the liquidity needed to support their operations.
The carrying amount of our investments under ASC 321 was approximately $13.7 million and $6.5 million at March 31, 2018 and December 31,
2017, respectively. There was no impairment loss or other adjustment to our investments during the three months ended March 31, 2018. We recognized $4.5
million impairment loss during the three months ended March 31, 2017. The impairment loss was recorded in Other expense, net on the consolidated
statements of operations.
Equity method investments
At March 31, 2018, we held minority interests in, five privately held entities. We can exercise significant influence, but not control, over the
investees through either holding more than a 20% voting interest in the entity or through our representation on the entity's board of directors. Based on the
nature of our ownership interests, we have variable interests in these entities. However, because we do not have power to direct the investee's activities and we
are not the investee's primary beneficiary, we therefore do not consolidate the investee in our financial statements. Our interests in these entities are
recognized as equity method investments included in Other long-term assets, net in our consolidated balance sheets.
The carrying value of our equity method investments exceeded the amount of underlying equity in net assets of the investees and the difference was
primarily related to goodwill and the fair value of intangible assets. The difference related to intangible assets is amortized over their estimated useful lives.
We record our proportionate share of the net income or loss of the investee and the amortization of the basis difference related to intangible assets in Other
expense, net in the consolidated statements of operations with corresponding adjustments to the carrying value of the investment.
The carrying amount of our equity method investments was approximately $16.0 million and $6.5 million at March 31, 2018 and December 31,
2017, respectively, and the difference between the carrying value and the amount of underlying equity in net assets of each investee was not significant. Our
proportionate share of the net income or loss of our equity method investees for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and the three months ended March
31, 2017 was not significant.
Noncontrolling interests
Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Medici Ventures, Inc. ("Medici Ventures"), conducts its primary business through its majority-owned subsidiary,
tØ.com, Inc. ("tZERO"), which includes a financial technology company, two related registered broker dealers, a registered investment advisor, and an
accredited investor verification company. tZERO and its consolidated subsidiaries are included in our consolidated financial statements. Intercompany
transactions have been eliminated and the amounts of contributions and gains or losses that are attributable to the noncontrolling interests are disclosed in
our consolidated financial statements.
On December 18, 2017, tZERO launched an offering (the "security token offering") of the right to acquire, if issued by us in the future, tZERO
Preferred Equity Tokens (the "tZERO Security Token") through a Simple Agreement for Future Equity ("SAFE"). The security token offering is expected to
run through May 14, 2018 but may be extended or shortened. At March 31, 2018, the SAFEs qualified as equity classified financial instruments issued by
tZERO. At March 31, 2018, cumulative proceeds from the security token offering totaling $92.9 million, inclusive of $13.9 million of proceeds received in
12

Table of Contents
cryptocurrencies, have been classified as a component of noncontrolling interest within our consolidated financial statements. As of March 31, 2018, tZERO
has incurred $16.0 million of offering costs associated with the security token offering that are classified as a reduction in proceeds within noncontrolling
interest of our consolidated financial statements.
At March 31, 2018, tZERO held majority interests in tZERO Advisors and Verify Investor, LLC. During 2018, tZERO purchased 65.8% of the
membership units of ES Capital Advisors, LLC ("ES Capital"), a registered investment advisor under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, which was
accounted as an asset acquisition. tZERO operates the ES Capital business under the name tZERO Advisors and offers automated investment advisory
services under the FinanceHub tab on our Website. tZERO also purchased 81.0% of Verify Investor, LLC, an accredited investor verification company. This
transaction is described further in Note 3—Acquisitions, Goodwill, and Acquired Intangible Assets. These entities are included in our consolidated financial
statements. Intercompany transactions have been eliminated and the amounts of contributions and gains or losses that are attributable to the noncontrolling
interests are disclosed in our consolidated financial statements.
Leases
We account for lease agreements as either operating or capital leases depending on certain defined criteria. In certain of our lease agreements, we
receive rent holidays and other incentives. We recognize lease costs on a straight-line basis without regard to deferred payment terms, such as rent holidays,
that defer the commencement date of required payments. Additionally, tenant improvement allowances are amortized as a reduction in rent expense over the
term of the lease. Leasehold improvements are capitalized at cost and amortized over the lesser of their expected useful life or the life of the lease, without
assuming renewal features, if any, are exercised.
Treasury stock
We account for treasury stock under the cost method and include treasury stock as a component of stockholders' equity.
Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price paid over the fair value of the net assets acquired in business combinations. Goodwill is not
amortized but is tested for impairment at least annually. When evaluating whether goodwill is impaired, we make a qualitative assessment to determine if it is
more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If the qualitative assessment determines that it is more likely than
not that its fair value is less than its carrying amount, we compare the fair value of the reporting unit to which the goodwill is assigned to its carrying amount.
If the carrying amount exceeds its fair value, then the amount of the impairment loss must be measured. The impairment loss, if any, is calculated by
comparing the implied fair value of the goodwill to its carrying amount. In calculating the implied fair value of goodwill, the fair value of the reporting unit
is allocated to the other assets and liabilities within the reporting unit based on estimated fair value. The excess of the fair value of a reporting unit over the
amount allocated to its other assets and liabilities is the implied fair value of goodwill. An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of
goodwill exceeds its implied fair value.
We test for impairment of goodwill annually or when we deem that a triggering event has occurred. There were no impairments to goodwill recorded
during the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017.
For three months ended March 31, 2018, we recognized $7.4 million in goodwill related to a business acquisition as described in Note 3—
Acquisitions, Goodwill, and Acquired Intangible Assets. The change in goodwill relates to a non-reportable segment, included in Other as described in Note
9—Business Segments.
Intangible assets other than goodwill
We capitalize and amortize intangible assets other than goodwill over their estimated useful lives unless such lives are indefinite. Intangible assets
other than goodwill acquired separately from third-parties are capitalized at cost while such assets acquired as part of a business combination are capitalized
at their acquisition-date fair value. Indefinite lived intangible assets include intellectual property and investment advisor licenses purchased in connection
with our tZERO Advisors and DeSoto businesses. Certain licenses are subject to annual renewal terms with immaterial fees which are expensed as incurred.
Indefinite-lived intangible assets are tested for impairment annually or more frequently when events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value more
likely than not exceeds its fair value. In addition, we routinely evaluate the remaining useful life of
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intangible assets not being amortized to determine whether events or circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful life, including any legal,
regulatory, contractual, competitive, economic, or other factors that may limit their useful lives. Definite lived intangible assets are amortized using the
straight-line method of amortization over their useful lives, with the exception of certain intangibles (such as acquired technology, customer relationships,
and trade names) which are amortized using an accelerated method of amortization based on cash flows. Definite lived intangible assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable as described below under Impairment of
long-lived assets.
Intangible assets, net consist of the following (in thousands):
March 31,
2018

Intangible assets subject to amortization, gross (1)
Less: accumulated amortization of intangible assets subject to amortization

$

Intangible assets subject to amortization, net
Intangible assets not subject to amortization

25,181
(11,361)

December 31,
2017

$

17,779
(10,442)

13,820
10,833

7,337
—

$
24,653 $
7,337
Total intangible assets, net
___________________________________________
(1) — At March 31, 2018, the weighted average remaining useful life for intangible assets subject to amortization, excluding fully amortized
intangible assets, was 6.64 years.
Amortization of intangible assets other than goodwill is classified within the corresponding operating expense categories in the consolidated
statements of operations as follows (in thousands):
Three months ended
March 31,
2018

Technology
Sales and marketing
General and administrative
Total amortization

2017

$

755
119
44

$

905
20
20

$

918

$

945

Estimated amortization expense for the next five years is: $3.0 million for the remainder of 2018, $2.7 million in 2019, $2.0 million in 2020, $1.7
million in 2021, $800,000 in 2022, and $3.6 million thereafter.
Impairment of long-lived assets
We review property and equipment and other long-lived assets, including amortizable intangible assets other than goodwill, for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset group may not be recoverable. Recoverability is measured by
comparison of the assets' carrying amount to future undiscounted net cash flows the asset group is expected to generate. Cash flow forecasts are based on
trends of historical performance and management's estimate of future performance, giving consideration to existing and anticipated competitive and
economic conditions. If such asset group is considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds their fair values. There were no impairments to long-lived assets recorded during the three months ended March 31, 2018 and
2017.
Other long-term assets, net
Other long-term assets, net consist primarily of our investments in equity securities, and long-term prepaid expenses. See Equity investments under
ASC 321 and Equity method investments above.
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Revenue recognition
We derive our revenue primarily from retail merchandise sales on our Website. We also earn revenue from advertising on our Website and from other
sources. We have organized our operations into two principal reporting segments based on the primary source of revenue: (i) direct revenue and (ii) partner
and other revenue. Net revenue from contracts with customers is further disaggregated by Retail and Other net revenue as disclosed in Note 9—Business
Segments.
On January 1, 2018, we adopted ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). See Recently adopted accounting standards,
below. Under Topic 606, revenue is recognized when control of the product passes to the customer or the service is provided and is recognized in an amount
that reflects the expected consideration to be received in exchange for such goods or services. Shipping and handling is considered a fulfillment activity and
fees charged to customers are included in net revenue upon completion of our performance obligation. We present revenue net of sales taxes, discounts, and
expected refunds. We record an allowance for returns based on current period revenues and historical returns experience. We analyze actual historical returns,
current economic trends and changes in order volume and acceptance of our products when evaluating the adequacy of the sales returns allowance in any
accounting period.
Generally, we require authorization from credit card or other payment vendors whose services we offer to our customers (such as PayPal) or
verification of receipt of payment, before we ship products to consumers or business purchasers. From time to time we grant credit to our business purchasers
with normal credit terms (typically 30 days). For sales in our partner business, we generally receive payments from our customers before our payments to our
suppliers are due.
We evaluate the criteria outlined in ASC 606-10-55, Principal versus Agent Considerations, in determining whether it is appropriate to record the
gross amount of merchandise sales and related costs or the net amount earned as commissions. When we are the principal in a transaction and control the
specific good or service before it is transferred to the customer, revenue is recorded gross; otherwise, revenue is recorded on a net basis. Currently, the
majority of both direct revenue and partner revenue is recorded on a gross basis.
Revenue related to merchandise sales is recognized upon transfer of control to our customers which generally occurs upon delivery of the product to
our customers. As such, customer orders are recorded as deferred revenue prior to delivery of products or services ordered. As we ship high volumes of
packages through multiple carriers, it is not practical for us to track the actual delivery date of each shipment. Therefore, we use estimates to determine which
shipments are delivered and, therefore, recognized as revenue at the end of the period. Our delivery date estimates are based on average shipping transit times,
which are calculated using the following factors: (i) the type of shipping carrier (as carriers have different in-transit times); (ii) the fulfillment source (either
our warehouses, those warehouses we control, or those of our partners); (iii) the delivery destination; and (iv) actual transit time experience, which shows that
delivery date is typically one to eight business days from the date of shipment. We review and update our estimates on a quarterly basis based on our actual
transit time experience. However, actual shipping times may differ from our estimates.
During the three months ended March 31, 2018, we recognized $34.9 million of net revenue included in Deferred revenue at December 31, 2017.
The allowance of returns was $15.4 million and $17.4 million at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.
We evaluate the revenue recognition criteria above for our broker dealer subsidiaries and we recognize revenue based on the amount of
consideration that we expect to receive on securities transactions (commission revenue) on a trade date and gross basis.
Direct revenue
Direct revenue is derived from merchandise sales of our owned inventory to individual consumers and businesses. Direct revenue comes from
merchandise sales that occur primarily through our Website, but may also occur through offline and other channels.
Partner and other revenue
Partner and other revenue is derived primarily from merchandise sales of inventory sourced through our partners which are generally shipped
directly to our consumers and businesses. Through contractual terms with our partners, we have the
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ability to control the promised goods or services and as a result record the majority of our partner revenue on a gross basis. Partner and other revenue comes
from merchandise sales that occur primarily through our Website, but may also occur through offline and other channels, including through our broker dealer
subsidiaries in our Other segment.
Club O loyalty program
We have a customer loyalty program called Club O Gold for which we sell annual memberships. For Club O Gold memberships, we record
membership fees as deferred revenue and we recognize revenue ratably over the membership period. The Club O Gold loyalty program allows members to
earn Club O Reward dollars for qualifying purchases made on our Website. We also have a co-branded credit card program which provides Club O Gold
members additional reward dollars for purchases made on our Website, and from other merchants.
Earned Club O Reward dollars may be redeemed on future purchases made through our Website. We recognize revenue for Club O Reward dollars
when customers redeem such rewards as part of a purchase on our Website. We account for these transactions as multiple element arrangements and allocate
the transaction price to separated performance obligations using their relative fair values. We include the fair value of reward dollars earned in deferred
revenue at the time the reward dollars are earned. Club O Reward dollars expire 90 days after the customer's Club O Gold membership expires. We recognize
estimated reward dollar breakage, to which we expected to be entitled, over the expected redemption period in proportion to actual redemptions by
customers. Upon adoption of Topic 606, Revenue Contracts with Customers, on January 1, 2018, we began classifying the breakage income related to Club O
Reward dollars and gift cards as a component of Partner and other revenue in our consolidated statements of operations rather than as a component of Other
expense, net. Breakage included in Partner and other revenue was $1.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018. We also recognized a cumulative
adjustment that reduced Accumulated deficit by approximately $5.0 million upon adoption related to the unredeemed portion of our gift cards and loyalty
program rewards.
Our total deferred revenue related to the outstanding Club O Reward dollars was $5.9 million and $6.5 million at March 31, 2018 and December 31,
2017, respectively. The timing of revenue recognition of these reward dollars is driven by actual customer activities, such as redemptions and expirations.
Advertising Revenue
Advertising revenues is derived primarily from sponsored links and display advertisements that are placed on our Website, distributed via email, or
sent out as direct mailers. Advertising revenue is recognized in net revenue when the advertising services are rendered. Advertising revenues were less than
2% of total net revenues for all periods presented.
Cost of goods sold
Cost of goods sold includes product costs, warehousing costs, outbound shipping costs, handling and fulfillment costs, customer service costs and
credit card fees, and is recorded in the same period in which related revenues have been recorded.
Cost of goods sold, including product cost and other costs and fulfillment and related costs are as follows (in thousands):
Three months ended
March 31,
2018

Total revenue, net

$

Cost of goods sold
Product costs and other cost of goods sold
Fulfillment and related costs
Total cost of goods sold
Gross profit

$

445,331

2017

100% $

432,435

100%

333,521
17,941

75%
4%

326,803
18,725

76%
4%

351,462

79%

345,528

80%

86,907

20%

93,869

21% $

Advertising expense
We expense the costs of producing advertisements the first time the advertising takes place and expense the cost of communicating advertising in
the period during which the advertising space or airtime is used. Internet advertising expenses are
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recognized as incurred based on the terms of the individual agreements, which are generally: 1) a commission for traffic driven to our Website that generates a
sale or 2) a referral fee based on the number of clicks on keywords or links to our Website generated during a given period. Advertising expense is included in
Sales and marketing expenses and totaled $68.9 million and $33.8 million during the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Prepaid
advertising (included in Prepaids and other current assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets) was $834,000 and $987,000 at March 31, 2018
and December 31, 2017, respectively.
Stock-based compensation
We measure compensation expense for all outstanding unvested share-based awards at fair value on the date of grant and recognize compensation
expense over the service period for awards at the greater of a straight-line basis or on an accelerated schedule when vesting of the share-based awards exceeds
a straight-line basis. When an award is forfeited prior to the vesting date, we recognize an adjustment for the previously recognized expense in the period of
the forfeiture. See Note 8—Stock-Based Awards.
Self-funded health insurance
We have a partially self-funded health insurance plan for our employees. We maintain a stop-loss insurance policy through an insurance company
that limits our losses both on a per employee basis and an aggregate basis. Although we intend to maintain this plan indefinitely, we may terminate, modify,
suspend, or discontinue this plan at any time and for any reason.
We are responsible for estimating our liability for unpaid costs of insured events that have occurred, which includes known cases on a case-by-case
basis, and also for events that have occurred, but have not yet been reported. The accrued liability related to the self-funded health insurance plan was $1.6
million and $1.0 million at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively, and is included in Accrued liabilities in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. Actual claims may differ from the amount accrued and any difference could be significant.
Loss contingencies
In the normal course of business, we are involved in legal proceedings and other potential loss contingencies. We accrue a liability for such matters
when it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated. When only a range of probable loss can be estimated, the most
probable amount in the range is accrued. If no amount within this range is a better estimate than any other amount within the range, the minimum amount in
the range is accrued. We expense legal fees as incurred (see Note 6—Commitments and Contingencies).
Income taxes
Our income tax provision for interim periods is determined using an estimate of our annual effective tax rate adjusted for discrete items, if any, for
relevant interim periods. We update our estimate of the annual effective tax rate each quarter and make cumulative adjustments if our estimated annual
effective tax rate changes.
Our quarterly tax provision and our quarterly estimate of our annual effective tax rate are subject to significant variations due to several factors
including variability in predicting our pre-tax and taxable income and the mix of jurisdictions to which those items relate, relative changes in expenses or
losses for which tax benefits are not recognized, how we do business, fluctuations in our stock price, and changes in law, regulations, and administrative
practices. Our effective tax rate can be volatile based on the amount of pre-tax income. For example, the impact of discrete items on our effective tax rate is
greater when pre-tax income is lower.
Each quarter we assess the recoverability of our deferred tax assets under ASC 740. We assess the available positive and negative evidence to
estimate whether we will generate sufficient future taxable income to use our existing deferred tax assets. We have limited carryback ability and do not have
significant taxable temporary differences to recover our existing deferred tax assets, therefore we must rely on future taxable income, including tax planning
strategies, to support their realizability. We have established a valuation allowance for our deferred tax assets not supported by carryback ability or taxable
temporary differences, primarily due to uncertainty regarding our future taxable income. We have considered, among other things, the cumulative loss
incurred over the three-year period ended March 31, 2018 as a significant piece of objective negative evidence. We intend to continue maintaining a
valuation allowance on our net deferred tax assets until there is sufficient evidence to support the reversal of all or some portion of these allowances. The
amount of the deferred tax asset
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considered realizable could be adjusted if objective negative evidence in the form of cumulative losses is no longer present and additional weight may be
given to subjective evidence such as long-term projections for growth. We will continue to monitor the need for a valuation allowance against our remaining
deferred tax assets on a quarterly basis.
Tax laws and regulations themselves are subject to change as a result of changes in fiscal policy, changes in legislation, the evolution of regulations,
and court rulings. On December 22, 2017, the President signed into law Public Law No. 115-97, commonly referred to as the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act ("TCJA"),
following its passage by the United States Congress. The TCJA made significant changes to U.S. federal income tax laws, mostly effective for tax years
beginning after December 31, 2017. Among many other changes, the new law lowers the corporate tax rate from 35% to 21% for tax years beginning in 2018,
transitions U.S international taxation from a worldwide tax system to a territorial system, and includes a one-time transition tax on the mandatory deemed
repatriation of cumulative foreign earnings as of December 31, 2017. Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118 ("SAB 118") was issued to address the application of
US GAAP in situations when a registrant does not have the necessary information available, prepared, or analyzed (including computations) in reasonable
detail to complete the accounting for certain income tax effects of the TCJA. In accordance with SAB 118, we calculated our best estimate of the impact of
the TCJA in accordance with our understanding of the law and guidance available and as a result recorded $25.3 million as additional income tax expense in
the fourth quarter of 2017. The amount related to the remeasurement of certain deferred tax assets and liabilities, based on the rates at which they are expected
to reverse in the future, was $25.2 million. Although the tax rate reduction was known, our analysis may also be affected by other analyses related to the
TCJA, including, but not limited to, our calculation of the mandatory deemed repatriation of cumulative foreign earnings and the state tax effect of
adjustments made to federal temporary differences, which are uncertain at this time. The provisional amount related to the one-time transition tax on the
mandatory deemed repatriation of cumulative foreign earnings was $41,000.
As of the date of this filing, our accounting for the TCJA has not been finalized. As noted at year-end, however, we were able to reasonably estimate
certain effects and, therefore, recorded adjustments associated with the remeasurement of certain deferred tax assets and liabilities and the mandatory deemed
repatriation of cumulative foreign earnings. We have not made any additional measurement-period adjustments related to these items during the quarter
because additional time is needed to complete our analysis of the TCJA, collect and prepare necessary data, and interpret any additional guidance issued by
the U.S. Treasury Department, Internal Revenue Service ("IRS"), FASB, and other standard-setting and regulatory bodies. Any subsequent adjustment to these
amounts will be recorded to tax expense in the quarter when the analysis is complete. Our accounting for the tax effects of the TCJA will be completed during
the measurement period, which should not extend beyond one year from the enactment date.
The TCJA includes a provision to tax global intangible low-taxed income ("GILTI") of foreign subsidiaries beginning in 2018. Under GAAP, we can
make an accounting policy election to either treat taxes due on the GILTI inclusion as a current period expense, or factor such amounts into our measurement
of deferred taxes. Due to the complexity of the new GILTI tax rules, we are continuing to evaluate this provision of the TCJA and the application of GAAP
and we have not yet elected an accounting policy nor have we recorded any potential deferred tax effects related to GILTI in our financial statements. We
have, however, included the estimated 2018 current GILTI impact in our annual effective tax rate for 2018. We expect to complete our accounting within the
prescribed measurement period.
The TCJA included a mandatory deemed repatriation of cumulative foreign earnings for the year ended December 31, 2017, for which we accrued
provisional tax expense. However, we would still need to accrue and pay various other taxes on this amount if repatriated. We are currently analyzing our
global working capital and cash requirements and the potential tax liabilities attributable to a repatriation, but we have yet to determine whether we plan to
change our prior assertion and repatriate earnings. Accordingly, we have not recorded any deferred taxes attributable to our investments in our foreign
subsidiaries. We will record the tax effects of any change in our prior assertion in the period that we complete our analysis and are able to make a reasonable
estimate, no later than December 2018.
We are subject to taxation in the United States and several state and foreign jurisdictions. Tax years beginning in 2013 are subject to examination
by taxing authorities, although net operating loss and credit carryforwards from all years are subject to examinations and adjustments for at least three years
following the year in which the attributes are used. We are under audit by the Ireland Revenue Agency for the calendar year 2016. We expect the audit to
continue during 2018.
Net loss per share
In 2016, we issued shares of our Blockchain Voting Series A Preferred Stock and our Voting Series B Preferred Stock (collectively the "preferred
shares"). These shares are considered participating securities, and as a result, net loss per share is
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calculated using the two-class method. Under this method, we give effect to preferred dividends and then allocate remaining net loss attributable to our
stockholders to both common shares and participating securities (based on the percentages outstanding) in determining net loss per common share.
Basic net loss per common share is computed by dividing net loss attributable to common shares (after allocating between common shares and
participating securities) by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted net loss per share is computed by dividing net loss attributable to common shares (after allocating between common shares and participating
securities) by the weighted average number of common and potential common shares outstanding during the period (after allocating total dilutive shares
between our common shares outstanding and our preferred shares outstanding). Potential common shares, comprising incremental common shares issuable
upon the exercise of stock options, warrants, and restricted stock awards are included in the calculation of diluted net loss per common share to the extent
such shares are dilutive. Net loss attributable to common shares is adjusted for options and restricted stock awards issued by our subsidiaries when the effect
of our subsidiary’s diluted earnings per share is dilutive.
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net loss per common share for the periods indicated (in thousands, except per
share data):
Three months ended
March 31,
2018

Net loss attributable to stockholders of Overstock.com, Inc.

$

Less: Preferred stock dividends - declared and accumulated
Undistributed loss

2017

(50,909)
27

$

(5,903)
27

(50,936)

Less: Undistributed loss allocated to participating securities

(5,930)

(1,186)

Net loss attributable to common shares
Net loss per common share—basic:
Net loss attributable to common shares—basic
Weighted average common shares outstanding—basic
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options and restricted stock awards
Weighted average common shares outstanding—diluted

(157)

$

(49,750)

$

(5,773)

$

(1.74)
28,566

$

(0.23)
25,290

—

Net loss attributable to common shares—diluted

$

28,566
(1.74)

—
25,290
(0.23)

$

The following shares were excluded from the calculation of diluted shares outstanding as their effect would have been anti-dilutive (in thousands):
Three months ended
March 31,
2018

Stock options and restricted stock units
Common shares issuable under stock warrant

2017

685
83

199
—

Sales of warrants
On November 8, 2017, we issued warrants to purchase up to a combined aggregate of 3,722,188 shares of our common stock to two purchasers in
privately negotiated transactions, for an aggregate purchase price of $6.5 million, net of issuance costs. The exercise price for the warrants was $40.45 per
share of common stock. On December 29, 2017, one of the warrant holders exercised its warrant in full and purchased a total of 2,472,188 shares of common
stock for $100.0 million. On January 17, 2018, the other warrant holder exercised its warrant in full and purchased 1,250,000 shares of common stock for
$50.6 million.
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Recently adopted accounting standards
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), which requires an entity to recognize the amount
of revenue to which it expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised goods or services to customers. We adopted the new standard on January 1, 2018 with
a cumulative adjustment that reduced Accumulated deficit by approximately $5.0 million as opposed to retrospectively adjusting prior periods. The
adjustment primarily relates to the unredeemed portion of our gift cards and loyalty program rewards, which we will recognize over the expected redemption
period, rather than waiting until the likelihood of redemption becomes remote or the rewards expire. We have also updated revenue disclosures in the notes to
our financial statements as required under the new standard.
The implementation did not impact our gross and net recognition for our revenue transactions. In addition, we continue to recognize revenue related
to merchandise sales upon delivery to our customers. However, we now present breakage on our Club O Rewards and gift cards in Partner and other revenue
in the consolidated statement of operations rather as a component of Other expense, net. Breakage revenue included in Partner and other revenue was $1.7
million for the three months ended March 31, 2018.
In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, Financial Instruments-Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Measurement of Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities, which requires equity investments previously recognized under the cost method to be measured at cost minus impairment, if
any, plus or minus changes resulting from observable price changes in orderly transactions for the identical or similar investment of the same issuer. We
adopted the changes under the new standard on January 1, 2018 on a prospective basis. The implementation of ASU 2016-01 did not have a material impact
on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.
In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Restricted Cash, which requires amounts generally
described as restricted cash be included with cash and cash equivalents when reconciling beginning-of-period and end-of-period total amounts shown in the
statement of cash flows. We adopted the new standard on January 1, 2018 retrospectively to each period presented in the statement of cash flows. The
implementation of ASU 2016-18 did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.
Recently issued accounting standards
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which, among other things, requires lessees to recognize most leases on their
balance sheets related to the rights and obligations created by those leases. The new standard also requires new disclosures to help financial statement users
better understand the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. The new standard becomes effective for us on January 1, 2019, with
early adoption permitted. We plan to adopt this ASU beginning on January 1, 2019. The amendments in this update should be applied under a modified
retrospective approach. We are evaluating the effect that ASU 2016-02 will have on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.
3. ACQUISITIONS, GOODWILL, AND ACQUIRED INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Verify Investor, LLC
On February 12, 2018, tZERO acquired 1,351,367 voting units, or 81% of the total equity interests of Verify Investor, LLC, an accredited investor
verification company, for a total purchase price of $12.0 million in cash. With the acquisition of the majority interest in Verify Investor, LLC, tZERO plans to
integrate the software and technology of Verify Investor, LLC with the Token Trading System that tZERO plans to develop and deploy. We estimated the fair
value of the acquired assets based on Level 3 inputs, which were unobservable (see Note 2—Accounting Policies, Fair value of financial instruments). These
inputs included our estimate of future revenues, operating margins, discount rates, royalty rates and assumptions about the relative competitive environment.
Determination and allocation of the purchase price to net tangible and intangible assets is based upon preliminary estimates. These preliminary
estimates and assumptions could change significantly during the measurement period as we finalize the valuations of the net tangible and intangible assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. Any change could result in variances between our future financial results and the amounts recognized in the financial
information presented below, including variances in fair values recorded, as well as expenses associated with these items.
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The preliminary estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date are as follows (in thousands):
Purchase Price

Fair Value

Cash paid, net of cash acquired

$

11,769

Allocation

Intangibles
Goodwill
Other assets acquired
Other liabilities assumed
Total net assets, net of cash acquired

$

7,400
7,360
3
(179)
14,584
(2,815)

Less: noncontrolling interest
Total net assets attributable to tZERO, net of cash acquired

$

11,769

The following table details the identifiable intangible assets acquired at their fair value and remaining useful lives as of March 31, 2018 (amounts in
thousands):
Intangible Assets

Estimated Useful
Life (in years)

Fair Value

Technology and developed software

$

6,300
700
400

Trade name
Customer relationships
Total acquired intangible assets at the acquisition date

10
10
0.5

7,400
(187)

Less: accumulated amortization of acquired intangible assets
Total acquired intangible assets, net

$

7,213

The expense for amortizing intangible assets acquired in connection with this acquisition was $187,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2018.
Acquired intangible assets primarily include technology, trade name, and customer relationships. As described above, we determined the fair value
of these assets using an income approach method to determine the present value of expected future cash flows for each identifiable intangible asset. This
method was based on discount rates which incorporate a risk premium to take into account the risks inherent in those expected cash flows. The expected cash
flows were estimated based on the company's historical operating results.
The acquired assets, liabilities, and associated operating results were consolidated into our financial statements at the acquisition dates, or the dates
on which we obtained control of the acquired assets or interests.
4. ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):
March 31,
2018

December 31,
2017

Accrued marketing expenses
Accrued compensation and other related costs
Accounts payable accruals
Allowance for returns
Other accrued expenses
Accrued freight
Accrued loss contingencies

$

28,720
16,752
16,222
15,423
7,193
7,187
608

$

25,959
10,716
16,614
17,391
6,283
5,040
608

Total accrued liabilities

$

92,105

$

82,611
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5. BORROWINGS
PCL L.L.C. term loan agreement
On November 6, 2017, we entered into a loan agreement with PCL L.L.C., an entity directly or indirectly wholly-owned by the mother and brother of
our Chief Executive Officer, Dr. Patrick Byrne. The agreement provides for a $40.0 million term loan (the "PCL Loan") which carries an annual interest rate
of 8.0% and a default rate of 18.0%. The PCL Loan is for a term of 18 months, subject to mandatory prepayment under certain circumstances, and is
prepayable at our election at any time without penalty or premium. Interest only is due monthly. There are no financial covenants associated the PCL Loan.
The principal amount and any then unpaid interest will be due and payable on May 1, 2019 subject to mandatory prepayment in the event of a sale
or encumbrance of the headquarters building or a change of ownership of Overstock or the occurrence of certain other events, including material changes to
Overstock's business, the loss of management control of Overstock by Dr. Patrick Byrne and other events. The PCL Loan is secured by our corporate
headquarters and the related land, fixtures and certain related personal property. Capitalized debt issuance costs with the new loan agreement are
insignificant.
At March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, our outstanding balance on the PCL Loan was $40.0 million. Amounts outstanding under the loan are
presented net of discount and issuance costs in our consolidated balance sheets. On May 8, 2018, our Board of Directors approved a prepayment of the PCL
Loan and we repaid the entire outstanding balance under the loan plus accrued interest.
U.S. Bank letters of credit
At March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, letters of credit totaling $280,000 and $355,000, respectively, were issued on our behalf collateralized
by compensating cash balances held at U.S. Bank, which are included in Restricted cash in our consolidated balance sheets.
U.S. Bank commercial purchasing card agreement
We have a commercial purchasing card (the "Purchasing Card") agreement with U.S. Bank. We use the Purchasing Card for business purpose
purchasing and must pay it in full each month. At March 31, 2018, $1.4 million was outstanding and $3.6 million was available under the Purchasing Card.
At December 31, 2017, $822,000 was outstanding and $4.2 million was available under the Purchasing Card.
Capital lease
During the year ended December 31, 2017, we entered into a capital lease arrangement of computer equipment for $1.4 million. The arrangement
will expire in 2020. At March 31, 2018, the outstanding balance under the capital lease was $1.2 million and is included in Other current liabilities, net and
Other long-term liabilities on our consolidated balance sheets. Future payment obligations, including interest, under the capital lease are $372,000, $496,000
and $413,000 for the rest of 2018, 2019 and 2020, respectively.
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6. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Summary of future minimum lease payments for all operating leases
Minimum future payments under all operating leases as of March 31, 2018, are as follows (in thousands):
Payments due by period

2018 (Remainder)
2019
2020
2021
2022
Thereafter

$

5,232
6,733
4,292
4,335
4,439
16,356

$

41,387

Rental expense for operating leases totaled $1.7 million and $2.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
Legal proceedings and contingencies
From time to time, we are involved in litigation concerning consumer protection, employment, intellectual property, claims under the securities
laws, and other commercial matters related to the conduct and operation of our business and the sale of products on our Website. In connection with such
litigation, we may be subject to significant damages. In some instances, other parties may have contractual indemnification obligations to us. However, such
contractual obligations may prove unenforceable or non-collectible, and if we cannot enforce or collect on indemnification obligations, we may bear the full
responsibility for damages, fees and costs resulting from such litigation. We may also be subject to penalties and equitable remedies that could force us to
alter important business practices. Such litigation could be costly and time consuming and could divert or distract our management and key personnel from
our business operations. Due to the uncertainty of litigation and depending on the amount and the timing, an unfavorable resolution of some or all of these
matters could materially affect our business, results of operations, financial position, or cash flows. The nature of the loss contingencies relating to claims that
have been asserted against us are described below.
On September 23, 2009, SpeedTrack, Inc. sued us along with 27 other defendants in the United States District Court in the Northern District of
California. We are alleged to have infringed a patent covering search and categorization software. We believe that certain third-party vendors of products and
services sold to us are contractually obligated to indemnify us, and we have tendered defense of the case to an indemnitor who accepted the defense. On April
21, 2016, the court entered an order partially dismissing the claims against us. On May 4, 2016, the plaintiff filed an amended complaint, and we have filed
our answer. No estimate of the loss or range of loss can be made. We intend to vigorously defend this action and pursue our indemnification rights with our
vendors.
On February 11, 2013, RPost Holdings, Inc., RPost Communications Limited, and RMail Limited, filed suit against us in the United States District
Court in the Eastern District of Texas for infringement of patents covering products and services that verify the delivery and integrity of email messages. We
tendered defense of the case to an indemnitor who accepted the defense. No estimate of the loss or range of loss can be made. We intend to vigorously defend
this action and pursue our indemnification rights with our vendors.
In June 2013, William French filed suit against us and 46 other defendants under seal in the Superior Court of the State of Delaware. The filing was
unsealed on March 24, 2014. French brought the action on Delaware's behalf for violations of Delaware's unclaimed property laws and for recovery of the
unredeemed gift card value allegedly attributable to Delaware residents. French's complaint alleges that we, and other defendants, knowingly refused to fulfill
obligations under Delaware's Abandoned Property Law by failing to report and deliver unclaimed gift card funds to the State of Delaware, and knowingly
made, used or caused to be made or used, false statements and records to conceal, avoid or decrease an obligation to pay or transmit money to Delaware in
violation of the Delaware False Claims and Reporting Act. The complaint seeks an injunction, monetary damages (including treble damages and penalties),
and attorney's fees and costs. In the early stages of the case, we, along with others, filed motions to dismiss the case. The court dismissed one count, but
allowed one count to remain. We filed two motions for summary judgment, along with other defendants, one of which was denied. The court has not yet ruled
on the
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second motion. The court has set tentative trial date commencing September 12, 2018. We intend to vigorously defend this action.
On April 28, 2016, the State of South Dakota sued us along with three other defendants in the Sixth Judicial Circuit Court of South Dakota. South
Dakota alleges that U.S. constitutional law should be revised to permit South Dakota to require out-of-state e-commerce websites to withhold and remit sales
tax in South Dakota in accordance with South Dakota's sales tax statute. Pursuant to the statute, we would not be required to withhold and remit sales tax
until there was a verdict in favor of South Dakota which was then upheld by the highest applicable appellate court. The statute does not require us to pay
sales tax retroactively if we were to lose. The state court granted summary judgment in our favor, and on September 13, 2017 the South Dakota Supreme
Court denied South Dakota’s appeal and ruled in our favor. South Dakota appealed to the U.S. Supreme Court, and on April 17, 2018, the U.S. Supreme Court
heard oral arguments in the case. We are awaiting a decision in the case.
On July 7, 2017, the State of Wyoming sued us along with five other defendants in the Second Judicial District Court of Wyoming. Wyoming
alleges that U.S. constitutional law should be revised to permit Wyoming to require out-of-state e-commerce retailers to withhold and remit sales tax in
Wyoming in accordance with Wyoming's sales tax statute. Pursuant to the statute, Wyoming is prohibited by an injunction from requiring us to withhold and
remit sales tax until there is a verdict in favor of Wyoming or the court otherwise lifts or dissolves the injunction. The statute does not require us to pay sales
tax retroactively if we were to lose. The outcome of this case is dependent upon the ruling of the U.S. Supreme Court in our case with South Dakota discussed
above.
On August 28, 2017, the State of Indiana sued us along with one other defendant in the Superior Court of Indiana, Marion County. Indiana alleges
that U.S. constitutional law should be revised to permit Indiana to require out-of-state e-commerce retailers to withhold and remit sales tax in Indiana in
accordance with Indiana's sales tax statute. Pursuant to the statute, we would not be required to withhold and remit sales tax until there is a verdict in favor of
Indiana and the verdict is no longer subject to appeal. The statute does not require us to pay sales tax retroactively if we were to lose. The outcome of this
case is dependent upon the ruling of the U.S. Supreme Court in our case with South Dakota discussed above.
In February 2018, the Division of Enforcement of the SEC informed tZERO and subsequently informed us that it is conducting an investigation and
requested that we and tZERO voluntarily provide certain information and documents related to tZERO and the tZERO security token offering in connection
with its investigation. We are cooperating fully with the SEC in connection with its investigation.
tZERO's broker-dealer subsidiaries are, and any broker-dealer subsidiaries that it acquires or forms in the future will be, subject to extensive
regulatory requirements under federal and state laws and regulations and self-regulatory organization ("SRO") rules. Each of SpeedRoute and PRO Securities
is registered with the SEC as a broker-dealer under the Exchange Act and in the states in which it conducts securities business and is a member of FINRA and
other SROs. In addition, PRO Securities owns and operates the PRO Securities ATS, which is registered with the SEC as an alternative trading system. Each of
SpeedRoute and PRO Securities is subject to regulation, examination and disciplinary action by the SEC, FINRA and state securities regulators, as well as
other governmental authorities and SROs with which it is registered or licensed or of which it is a member. On February 22, 2018, the SEC's New York
Regional Office notified PRO Securities that it is conducting an examination of PRO Securities, and on March 6, 2018 the SEC's Boston Regional Office
notified tZERO Advisors that it is conducting an examination of tZERO Advisors.
As a result of tZERO's projects seeking to apply distributed ledger technologies to the capital markets, tZERO's subsidiaries have been, and remain
involved in, ongoing discussions with regulatory authorities. While certain of the discussions have been relatively informal, tZERO's broker-dealer
subsidiaries have also received and responded to several written inquiries from FINRA relating to such projects. While tZERO considers these continuing
inquiries to be ordinary course in light of the non-traditional nature of tZERO's distributed ledger projects, any failure by tZERO's broker-dealer subsidiaries
to satisfy their regulatory authorities that they are in compliance with all applicable rules and regulations could have a material adverse effect on tZERO and
on us.
In addition, in December 2017, SpeedRoute received a letter from FINRA stating that the Department of Enforcement at FINRA has received a
referral from the staff of FINRA's Department of Market Regulation relating to rules applicable to supervision and required supervisory procedures for review
of certain potential trading activity, such as pre-arranged trades or wash trades. In addition, SpeedRoute continues to have discussions with FINRA about
several matters, including a matter related to potential violations of FINRA rules relating to Order Audit Trail System reporting and trading practice matters,
and has received document requests from FINRA in connection with certain ongoing matters. SpeedRoute has received and
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responded to inquiries from FINRA and the SEC. In an unrelated matter, SpeedRoute and PRO Securities have been named in a FINRA investigatory matter in
which FINRA has conducted on the record interviews of two senior officers of SpeedRoute and PRO Securities, who are also senior officers of tZERO.
On March 9, 2018, a purported securities class action lawsuit was filed against us and two of our executives in the United States District Court in the
Central District of Utah. The lawsuit alleges violations of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ("Exchange Act") in connection with allegedly false and
misleading statements made by the Company relating to tZERO's security token offering and the announcement of an SEC investigation. The plaintiffs seek
class certification, an award of unspecified compensatory damages, and other further relief as the Court may deem just and proper. On April 6, 2018, a
substantially similar lawsuit was filed in the same court also naming the Company, and two of our executives as defendants, bringing the same claims under
the Exchange Act, and seeking substantially similar relief. Based on a review of the allegations, the Company believes that the plaintiffs' allegations are
without merit, and intends to vigorously defend against the lawsuits. An unfavorable outcome could have a material adverse effect on the Company's results
of operations for the period in which such a loss is recognized. The Company cannot reasonably estimate the possible loss or range of loss that may arise from
this lawsuit.
We have recognized liabilities for contingencies deemed probable and estimable totaling $608,000 at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017,
which are included in Accrued liabilities in our consolidated balance sheets. It is reasonably possible that the actual losses may exceed our accrued
liabilities.
7. INDEMNIFICATIONS AND GUARANTEES
During our normal course of business, we have made certain indemnities, commitments, and guarantees under which we may be required to make
payments in relation to certain transactions. These indemnities include, but are not limited to, indemnities to various lessors in connection with facility leases
for certain claims arising from such facility or lease, the environmental indemnity we entered into in favor of the lenders under our loan agreement with PCL
L.L.C., and indemnities to our directors and officers to the maximum extent permitted under the laws of the State of Delaware. The duration of these
indemnities, commitments, and guarantees varies, and in certain cases, is indefinite. In addition, the majority of these indemnities, commitments, and
guarantees do not provide for any limitation of the maximum potential future payments we could be obligated to make. As such, we are unable to estimate
with any reasonableness our potential exposure under these items. We have not recorded any liability for these indemnities, commitments, and guarantees in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. We do, however, accrue for losses for any known contingent liability, including those that may arise from
indemnification provisions, when future payment is both probable and reasonably estimable.
8. STOCK-BASED AWARDS
We have equity incentive plans that provide for the grant to employees and board members of stock-based awards, including stock options and
restricted stock. Stock-based compensation expense was as follows (in thousands):
Three months ended
March 31,
2018

Overstock restricted stock awards
Medici Ventures stock options
tZERO equity awards
Total stock-based compensation expense

2017

$

2,384
11
4,040

$

940
—
—

$

6,435

$

940

Overstock restricted stock awards
During the three months ended March 31, 2018, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors approved grants of 322,092 restricted stock
awards to our officers, board members and employees. The restricted stock awards generally vest over three years at 33.3% at the end of the first year, 33.3%
at the end of the second year and 33.3% at the end of the third year and are subject to the recipient's continuing service to us. At March 31, 2018, 688,830
unvested restricted stock awards remained outstanding.
The cost of restricted stock awards is determined using the fair value of our common stock on the date of the grant, and compensation expense is
either recognized on a straight-line basis over the three-year vesting schedule or on an accelerated schedule when vesting of restricted stock awards exceeds a
straight-line basis. The cumulative amount of compensation
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expense recognized at any point in time is at least equal to the portion of the grant date fair value of the award that is vested at that date. The weighted
average grant date fair value of restricted stock awards granted during the three months ended March 31, 2018 was $73.22.
The following table summarizes restricted stock award activity during the three months ended March 31, 2018 (in thousands):
Three months ended
March 31, 2018
Weighted
Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

Units

Outstanding—beginning of year
Granted at fair value
Vested
Forfeited
Outstanding—end of period

540
322
(166)
(7)

$

17.05
73.22
15.55
52.75

689

$

43.35

Medici Ventures stock options
In July 2017, the Board of Directors of Medici Ventures approved the Medici Ventures, Inc. 2017 Stock Option Plan, which provides for the grant of
options to employees and directors of and consultants to Medici Ventures to acquire up to a total of 10% of the authorized shares of Medici Ventures'
common stock. Pursuant to the plan, the Board of Directors approved grants of 74,750 stock options to certain Medici Ventures and Overstock employees
during the year ended December 31, 2017. The stock options were valued in total at $91,000 and subject to two vesting schedules, and compensation
expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting schedules.
tZERO equity awards
In December 2017, the Board of Directors of tZERO approved the tZERO.com 2017 Equity Incentive Plan pursuant to which it may grant
compensatory options to acquire up to 5% of tZERO’s common stock. In January 2018, tZERO granted stock awards under the equity incentive plan for an
aggregate of approximately 1.0% of tZERO’s common stock all of which vested on January 23, 2018. In January 2018, tZERO recognized $4.0 million in
compensation expense associated with these awards, which was the entire estimated fair value at the grant date. Accordingly, there is no expense to be
recognized in future periods related to these awards. As a result of these vested awards, our indirect ownership interest in tZERO was reduced from 81% to
approximately 80%.
9. BUSINESS SEGMENTS
Segment information has been prepared in accordance with ASC Topic 280 Segment Reporting. We determined our segments based on how we
manage our business, which, in our view, consists primarily of our Retail and Medici businesses. Our Retail business consists of our Direct and Partner
reportable segments. We use gross profit as the measure to determine our reportable segments because there is not discrete financial information available
below gross profit for our Direct and Partner segments. As a result, our Medici business is not significant as compared to our Direct and Partner segments and
is included in Other. Our Other segment consists of Medici Ventures and its subsidiaries, including tZERO. Although our Direct and Partner segments both
relate to our Retail business, we do not combine these segments because they have dissimilar economic characteristics, such as gross profit margins. We do
not allocate assets between our segments for our internal management purposes, and as such, they are not presented here. There were no significant intersegment sales or transfers during the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017.
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The following table summarizes information about reportable segments for three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 (in thousands):
Three months ended
March 31,
Direct

Partner

Retail Total

Other

Total

2018
Revenue, net
Cost of goods sold (1)
Gross profit

$

16,270
14,772

$

423,726
332,808

$

439,996
347,580

$

5,335
3,882

$

445,331
351,462

$

1,498

$

90,918

$

92,416
125,532
(455)

$

1,453
22,731
116

$

93,869
148,263
(339)

Operating expenses (1) (2)
Interest and other income (expense), net (3)
Pre-tax loss

(33,571)
(88)

Benefit from income taxes
Net loss (4)
2017
Revenue, net
Cost of goods sold (1)
Gross profit

(21,162)
(189)

(54,733)
(277)

$

(33,483)

$

(20,973)

$

(54,456)

432,435
345,528

$

22,828
20,963

$

405,261
321,297

$

428,089
342,260

$

4,346
3,268

$

$

1,865

$

83,964

$

85,829
84,538
102

$

1,078
4,682
(4,411)

$

Operating expenses (1) (2)
Interest and other income (expense), net (3)
Pre-tax income (loss)

1,393
889

Provision for (benefit from) income taxes
Net income (loss) (4)

$

504

(8,015)
(1,229)
$

(6,786)

86,907
89,220
(4,309)
(6,622)
(340)

$

(6,282)

__________________________________________
(1) — The above amounts include Retail depreciation and amortization expense of $6.4 million and $7.4 million for the three months ended March
31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
(2) — The above amounts include Other depreciation and amortization expense of $1.1 million and $1.2 million for the three months ended March
31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
(3) — The above amounts exclude intercompany transactions eliminated in consolidation, which consist primarily of service fees and interest. The
net amounts of these intercompany transactions were $2.0 million and $306,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.
(4) — Net income (loss) presented for segment reporting purposes is before any adjustments attributable to noncontrolling interests.
Our Direct segment includes revenues, direct costs, and cost allocations associated with sales of inventory we own. Costs for this segment include
product costs, freight, warehousing and fulfillment costs, credit card fees and customer service costs.
Our Partner segment includes revenues, direct costs and cost allocations associated with sales of inventory owned by our partners. Costs for this
segment include product costs, outbound freight and fulfillment costs, credit card fees and customer service costs.
For the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, substantially all of our sales revenues were attributable to customers in the United States. At
March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, substantially all our fixed assets were located in the United States.
10. BROKER DEALERS
As part of our Medici blockchain and fintech technology initiatives, we hold a controlling interest in each of two broker dealers, SpeedRoute LLC
("SpeedRoute") and Pro Securities LLC ("Pro Securities").
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SpeedRoute is an electronic, agency-only FINRA-registered broker dealer that provides connectivity for its customers to U.S. equity exchanges as
well as off-exchange sources of liquidity such as dark pools. All of SpeedRoute's customers are registered broker dealers. SpeedRoute does not hold, own or
sell securities.
Pro Securities is a FINRA-registered broker dealer that owns and operates the Pro Securities alternative trading system ("ATS"), which is registered
with the SEC. An ATS is a trading system that is not regulated as an exchange, but is a licensed venue for matching buy and sell orders. The Pro Securities
ATS is a closed system available only to its broker dealer subscribers. Pro Securities does not accept orders from non-broker dealers, nor does it hold, own or
sell securities.
SpeedRoute and Pro Securities are subject to the SEC's Uniform Net Capital Rule (SEC Rule 15c3-1), which requires the maintenance of minimum
net capital and requires that the ratio of aggregate indebtedness to net capital, both as defined, shall not exceed 15 to 1 and that equity capital may not be
withdrawn or cash dividends paid if the resulting net capital ratio would exceed 10 to 1. At March 31, 2018, SpeedRoute had net capital of $451,585, which
was $345,100 in excess of its required net capital of $106,485 and SpeedRoute's net capital ratio was 3.54 to 1. At March 31, 2018, Pro Securities had net
capital of $105,101 which was $100,101 in excess of its required net capital of $5,000 and Pro Securities net capital ratio was 0.16 to 1. At December 31,
2017, SpeedRoute had net capital of $334,848, which was $233,485 in excess of its required net capital of $101,363 and SpeedRoute's net capital ratio
was 4.5 to 1. At December 31, 2017, PRO Securities had net capital of $24,175, which was $19,175 in excess of its required net capital of $5,000 and PRO
Securities net capital ratio was 1.3 to 1.
SpeedRoute and Pro Securities did not have any securities owned or securities sold, not yet purchased at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017,
respectively.
ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
This Report on Form 10-Q and the documents incorporated herein by reference, as well as our other public documents and statements our officers
and representatives may make from time to time, contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. These statements relate to our financial condition, liquidity, results of
operations, earnings outlook and prospects. You can find many of these statements by looking for words such as “may,” “would,” “could,” “should,”
“will,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “predict,” “project,” “potential,” “continue,” “contemplate,” “seek,” “assume,” “believe,” “intend,” “plan,” “forecast,”
“goal,” “estimate,” or other similar expressions which identify these forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are not historical facts,
and are based on current expectations, estimates and projections about our industry and business, and on management’s beliefs and certain assumptions
made by management, many of which, by their nature, are inherently uncertain and beyond our control. Accordingly, you are cautioned that any such
forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to assumptions, risks and uncertainties that are difficult to predict,
and that actual results may be materially different from the results expressed or implied by any of our forward-looking statements. We claim the protection
of the safe harbor provided by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, as amended, for all such forward-looking statements.
Unless otherwise required by law, we also disclaim any obligation to update our view of any such risks or uncertainties or to announce publicly
any revisions to any forward-looking statements made or incorporated by reference in this report. A number of important factors could cause actual results
to differ materially from those indicated by the forward-looking statements, including the risks set forth in the “Risk Factors” section of this report, and the
risks described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017. Our forward-looking statements include all statements other
than statements of historical fact including, without limitation, all statements regarding:
•
•
•

our strategies and plans for our e-commerce business and our Medici businesses, including our tZERO initiatives;
the possibility that we will pursue or attempt to pursue a strategic alternative that could change our business dramatically, including the
possibility and potential effects of a sale of our e-commerce business, as well as the possibility that we will determine not to pursue any
strategic alternative at all in the foreseeable future;
our expectation that if we sell our e-commerce business for cash and retain some or all of the after-tax proceeds of the sale, we would return a
significant portion of the after-tax proceeds to our stockholders within 12 months after
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•
•
•
•
•
•

•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

any such sale, by means of a stock repurchase program, dividend, one or more issuer tender offers or other means to our stockholders;
our expectations regarding the effects on us of the recent Tax Cuts and Jobs Act;
our expectations regarding the costs, benefits and risks of Medici Ventures’ efforts to develop blockchain applications and tZERO’s efforts to
develop financial technology (“fintech”) applications, including applications using blockchain technology and how effectively that
technology will be adopted, and including our expectations regarding the costs, benefits and risks of the operations of tZERO;
all statements regarding the plans of tZERO or Medici Ventures;
our expectations regarding the costs, benefits and risks of tZERO’s ownership of SpeedRoute and PRO Securities, each of which is a registered
broker dealer;
our expectations regarding the costs, benefits and risks of having less than wholly-owned subsidiaries, including our indirect 80% owned
subsidiary tZERO and our currently wholly-owned subsidiary Medici Ventures, which has issued stock options to employees and consequently
may not be wholly-owned in the future;
our discussion of the security token offering currently being conducted by tZERO, including the possibility that the proceeds of the security
token offering might be treated as income to us for federal income tax purposes, which would increase our income tax expense, and might be
treated as a liability rather than equity for accounting purposes, which would reduce tZERO’s net book value compared to equity treatment,
and the possibility that the security token offering will not raise a significant amount of funds or might not be completed at all;
our expectations regarding the costs, benefits and risks of our efforts and plans to advertise or offer financial product and services offerings
on our website, including our intention to continue to advertise discount stock brokerage trading services, and our expectations regarding the
costs, benefits and risks of other additional businesses, innovations and projects that we or our subsidiaries may engage in, offer or advertise
in the near future;
our expectations regarding Medici Ventures’ ownership interest in DeSoto Inc., a newly-formed public benefit corporation formed for the
purpose of carrying out our collaboration with economist Hernando de Soto, and our plans and expectations regarding DeSoto Inc.;
our plans to increase our branding and marketing expenditures significantly despite our decision not to proceed with the equity offering we
launched in late March 2018;
our beliefs regarding our ability to attract and retain customers in a cost-efficient manner;
the anticipated effectiveness of or potential improvements in our marketing;
our future operating and financial results, including any projections of revenue, profits or losses, contribution, technology expense, general
and administrative expense, cash flow, capital expenditures or other financial measures or amounts or non-GAAP financial measures or
amounts or anticipated changes in any of them;
our beliefs and expectations regarding the adequacy of our facilities, including leased and third-party operated warehouse facilities, as well
as the possibility that we may add distribution centers or other distribution facilities to our distribution system or our expectations regarding
the results of any such additions;
our expectations that we can comply with the requirements of our term loan agreement and related agreements, and that we will be able to
retire or refinance the debt we have or incur in the future;
our future capital requirements and our ability to satisfy our capital needs;
the adequacy of our liquidity and our ability, if any, to increase our liquidity or capital resources through traditional capital raising, tZERO’s
security token offering or otherwise;
any possibility that we may purchase tZERO Security Tokens from tZERO;
any possibility that tZERO may repay any or all of the amounts we have advanced to tZERO, or that we may accept tZERO Security Tokens to
be issued by tZERO in satisfaction of any or all of such amounts;
tZERO’s plans, including without limitation its plans to develop its Token Trading System;
whether the Token Trading System will be able to comply with SEC rules and regulations;
our plans and expectations regarding the costs, benefits, and risks of attempting to develop technology applications including applications
using or relating to blockchain technology and our plans to commercialize any of these potential applications;
the competition we currently face and anticipate;
the effects of current and future government regulation;
our expectations for our international sales efforts and the anticipated results of our international operations;
our efforts to provide multi-channel fulfillment services;
our plans for further changes to our business;
our expectations regarding our ability to successfully adopt a high-growth, high-cash flow strategy, and our beliefs regarding our ability to
effectively change business strategies and scale the growth of our business;
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our beliefs regarding current or future litigation or regulatory actions or fines, including our expectations regarding the investigation the
Division of Enforcement of the Securities and Exchange Commission is conducting and its request that we voluntarily provide certain
information and documents related to tZERO and the tZERO security token offering, and our expectations regarding the purported class
action lawsuits that were filed against us shortly after we publicly announced the SEC’s investigation;
our beliefs and expectations regarding existing and future tax laws and related laws and the application of those laws to our business
including the results of tax assessments we receive periodically;
our beliefs regarding the adequacy of our insurance coverage;
our beliefs regarding the adequacy and anticipated functionality of our infrastructure, including our backup facilities and beliefs regarding
the adequacy of our disaster planning and our ability to recover from a disaster or other interruption of our ability to operate our Website;
our beliefs regarding our cybersecurity efforts and measures and our efforts to prevent data breaches and the costs we will incur in our
ongoing efforts to avoid interruptions to our product offerings and other business processes from cyber-attacks and from data breaches;
our ability to maintain or improve upon customer service levels that we and our customers consider acceptable;
our beliefs regarding the adequacy of our order processing systems and our fulfillment and distribution capabilities;
our belief that we and our partners will be able to maintain inventory levels at appropriate levels despite the seasonal nature of our business
and the rapid changes we encounter in customer demand for various products;
our expectations regarding our emphasis on home and garden product offerings;
our belief that we can successfully offer and sell a constantly changing mix of products and services; and
our other statements about the anticipated benefits and risks of our business and plans.

Our forward-looking statements are only predictions. Actual events or results may differ materially from those contemplated by our forwardlooking statements for a variety of reasons, including among others:
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•

any changes we may make to our business as a result of our current ongoing review of potential strategic alternatives, which could involve a
sale of our e-commerce business, a sale of, or business combination involving, Overstock in its entirety, a management-led buyout, and/or
additional equity or debt financings;
the possibility that we may sell our e-commerce business for cash and retain some or all of the after-tax proceeds of the sale for use in our
blockchain initiatives, which would result in our stockholders owning equity interests in a publicly-held corporation seeking to develop
entirely new businesses and revenue streams, without the benefits of our current e-commerce business and the approximately $1.7 billion it
generates in annual net revenues;
the potentially substantial corporate level income tax expense we could incur if we were to sell our e-commerce business in a taxable
transaction;
the possibility that a sale of our e-commerce business would leave us without the revenues generated by the e-commerce business but with most
if not all of the expenses of operating a publicly-held corporation regardless of the sale of the e-commerce business;
the possibility that our publicly-disclosed review of potential strategic alternatives may distract our management and other employees, may
cause members of our management and/or other employees to seek employment elsewhere, and may have adverse effects on our business and
financial results;
the technical, operational, financial, regulatory, legal, reputational, marketing and other obstacles we would face in trying to create a
profitable business with significant revenues from our blockchain initiatives;
the possibility that the recent Tax Cuts and Jobs Act will have adverse effects on us in addition to those we have already identified;
the possibility that the proceeds of the security token offering currently being conducted by tZERO might be treated as income to us for federal
income tax purposes;
the possibility that the security token offering currently being conducted by tZERO could result in claims against tZERO and/or us;
the probability that we will continue to incur substantially higher levels of sales and marketing expenditures than we have in the past, which
could continue to have an adverse effect on our near-term financial results as it did in the first quarter of 2018;
the costs of, and any difficulties we may encounter with, the implementation of our growth strategies for our e-commerce business, including
our plans to invest more heavily in sales and marketing activities, new distribution facilities, our technology platforms, our Club O rewards
program and our private label strategy, especially in light of our decision not to proceed with the equity offering we launched in late March
2018;
the efficiency of our e-commerce marketing and its effect on our business strategy;
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the cost and availability of online and traditional advertising, and the results of our various brand building and marketing campaigns;
difficulties we have encountered and continue to encounter with changes that Google has made to its natural search engine algorithms, which
have periodically resulted in lower rankings of our products and may continue to do so, and future changes that Google and other search
engine companies may make to their natural search engine algorithms, which may have similar effects on us;
increasing competition, including competition from well-established competitors including Amazon.com, competition from competitors based
in China or in other relatively low-cost jurisdictions, competition from well-funded companies, including Wayfair, apparently willing to incur
substantial losses in order to build market share, and from others including Amazon and other competitors with business models that include
delivery capabilities that we cannot currently match and do not expect to be able to match in the foreseeable future;
difficulties we may encounter in connection with our efforts to offer services to our customers outside of our e-commerce business, including
the credit, insurance, discount brokerage trading services and automated investment advisory services we advertise;
difficulties, including expense and any operational or regulatory issues we may encounter in connection with tZERO or its subsidiaries,
including its two registered broker-dealers, SpeedRoute and PRO Securities;
technical, operational, regulatory or other difficulties we may encounter with our Medici or tZERO blockchain or financial technology
initiatives, including any difficulties we or tZERO may have marketing any products or services tZERO may offer, whether due to lack of market
size or acceptance or as a result of competition from any of the numerous competitors seeking to develop competing technologies or systems or
as a result of patents that may be granted to other companies or persons; and losses we may continue to incur in connection with our Medici
and tZERO blockchain and financial technology initiatives;
the possibility that blockchain technology may be adopted more slowly than we anticipate;
the difficulties tZERO will face in attempting to market its DLR Software, and the possibility that we and/or tZERO have overestimated the
demand for, and/or the size of the intended market for the DLR Software or may face regulatory issues relevant to the DLR Software;
the difficulties tZERO will face in attempting to generate revenues from blockchain-based applications of any nature;
Medici Ventures’ current business model of providing the services of its developers at Medici Ventures’ cost to companies in which Medici
Ventures owns an interest;
any difficulties we may have with the assets or interests in other companies that we or our subsidiaries Medici Ventures or tZERO may have
made or may make in the future, including any impairment we may recognize with respect to assets or businesses that we, Medici Ventures or
tZERO have acquired or may acquire, including with respect to our interests in companies that are in startup or development stages;
any difficulties DeSoto Inc. may have with its business plan, including any difficulties it may have in developing or implementing a plan to
generate revenues or profits, and any difficulties it or we may have as a result of DeSoto Inc.’s status as a public benefit corporation under
Delaware law;
any liability or expense we may incur as a result of our interests in other companies, whether as a result of regulatory issues or otherwise;
any downturn in the U.S. housing industry or other changes in U.S. and global economic conditions or U.S. consumer spending;
the imposition of tariffs or occurrence of other events or circumstances that increase the price of importing into the U.S. the types of
merchandise we sell in our e-commerce business or make it more difficult to import or obtain such merchandise;
our failure to maintain our existing relationships with our fulfillment partners or build new relationships with fulfillment partners on
acceptable terms;
our failure to maintain optimal levels of product quality, quantity and assortment or to attract sufficient consumer interest in our product
offerings;
any claims we may face regarding the quality, safety or labelling of the products we offer;
modifications we may make to our business model from time to time, including aspects relating to our product mix and the mix of direct/partner
sourcing of the products we offer, and difficulties we may encounter as a result of our efforts to change various aspects of our business model
frequently and rapidly;
the mix of products purchased by our customers and changes to that mix;
any claims we may face regarding cyber security issues or data breaches or difficulties we encounter regarding Internet or other infrastructure
or communications impairment problems or the costs of preventing or responding to any such problems;
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any problems with or affecting our payment card processors, including cyber-attacks, Internet or other infrastructure or communications
impairment or other events that could interrupt the normal operation of the payment card processors or any difficulties we may have
maintaining compliance with the rules of the payment card processors;
any substantial decrease in our liquidity, whether as a result of our business operations, including our implementation of our growth
strategies for our e-commerce business, which include our plans to invest more heavily in sales and marketing activities, new distribution
facilities, our technology platforms, our Club O rewards program and our private label strategy, or as a result of any mandatory or voluntary
repayment we may make of our term loan, or as a result of the expenses or results of governmental inquiries or investigations or litigation or
other claims against us, and the possibility that we will be unable to obtain financing or any other source of liquidity adequate to enable us to
continue our operations;
problems with or affecting the facility where substantially all of our computer and communications hardware is located or other problems that
result in the unavailability of our Website or reduced performance of our transaction systems;
the extent to which we may owe income or sales taxes or may be required to collect sales taxes or report sales or to modify our business model
in order to avoid being required to collect sales taxes or report sales or avoid the application of other types of taxes, and any liabilities that
may ultimately be imposed upon us for not having collected sales tax in jurisdictions in which we have not done so;
the possibility that the United States Supreme Court may overturn the sales and use tax physical presence nexus requirement previously upheld
by the Supreme Court in 1992 in Quill v. North Dakota;
any losses or issues we may encounter as a consequence of accepting or holding bitcoin or other cryptocurrencies, whether as a result of
regulatory, tax or other legal issues, technological issues, value fluctuations, including the substantial decrease in cryptocurrency values in
the first quarter of 2018, which resulted in an $8.8 million impairment, lack of widespread adoption of bitcoin or other cryptocurrencies as an
acceptable medium of exchange or otherwise;
difficulties we may have in responding to technological changes;
losses we may incur due to fraud or our inability to prevent or limit fraud;
claims or other problems we may encounter as a result of the listing or sale on our Website of pirated, counterfeit or illegal items;
difficulties we may have financing our operations or our expansion with either internally generated funds or external sources of financing,
especially considering we recently announced a public equity offering on March 26, 2018 but terminated the offering shortly thereafter
following a significant decline in the price of our common stock;
any failure by us to maintain compliance with the requirements of our current loan agreement or any future loan agreement or related
agreements;
any environmental liabilities we may incur relating to the real estate owned by one of our wholly-owned subsidiaries and on which our
corporate headquarters is located;
any failure of any of our product or service offerings outside of our main shopping Website offerings to provide the benefits we expect from
them;
any difficulties we may encounter as a result of our reliance on numerous third parties that we do not control for the performance of critical
functions material to our business;
any difficulties we may encounter in connection with the rapid shift of e-commerce and online payments to mobile and multi-channel
commerce and payments;
our inability to increase market share or revenue in accordance with our plans;
difficulties with the management of our growth and any periods in which we fail to grow in accordance with our plans;
difficulties we may encounter in connection with our efforts to emphasize our home and garden product offerings and to brand ourselves as a
home and garden shopping destination, including the risk that our sales of home and garden product offerings could decrease substantially as
a result of a significant downturn in some or all of the U.S. housing market;
fluctuations in our operating results;
difficulties we may encounter in connection with our efforts to expand internationally, including claims we may face and liabilities we may
incur in connection with those efforts;
adverse results in legal proceedings, investigations or other claims, and costs we may incur in connection with any of them, including the costs
of responding to the investigation the Division of Enforcement of the Securities and Exchange Commission is conducting and the costs of
litigating the purported class action lawsuit(s) that were filed against us shortly after we publicly announced the SEC’s investigation;
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any difficulties we may have optimizing our warehouse operations;
the risks of inventory management and seasonality, particularly with inventory subject to rapid price declines;
any decrease in the rate of growth of e-commerce, particularly in home goods, and the occurrence of any event that would adversely affect ecommerce or discourage or prevent consumers from shopping online or via mobile apps;
the possibility that we will suffer adverse consequences as a result of one or more of the related party transactions we have entered into or
other related party transactions that we may enter into in the future; and
the other risks described in this report or in our other public filings.

In evaluating all forward-looking statements, you should specifically consider the risks outlined above or elsewhere in this report and the risks
described in our Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 15, 2018, especially under the headings “Risk Factors,” “Legal Proceedings,” and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” These factors may cause our actual results to differ materially
from those contemplated by any forward-looking statement in this report. Although we believe that our expectations reflected in the forward-looking
statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee or offer any assurance of future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements or other future
events.
Our forward-looking statements contained in this report speak only as of the date of this report and, except as required by law, we undertake no
obligation to update forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances occurring after the date of this report or any changes in our
expectations or any change in any events, conditions or circumstances on which any of our forward-looking statements were based.
Available Information
Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and other reports filed or furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 are available free of charge through the Investor Relations section of our main website
www.overstock.com as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Our website and the information contained therein or connected thereto are not a part of or incorporated into this Quarterly Report on Form 10Q.
Overview
We are an online retailer and advancer of blockchain technology. Through our online retail business, we offer a broad range of price-competitive
products, including furniture, home decor, bedding and bath, housewares, jewelry and watches, among other products. We sell our products and services
through our Internet websites located at www.overstock.com, www.o.co and www.o.biz (referred to collectively as the "Website"). Although our three
websites are located at different domain addresses, the technology and equipment and processes supporting the Website and the process of order fulfillment
described herein are the same for all three websites.
In late 2014, we began working on initiatives to develop and advance blockchain technology, which we refer to collectively as Medici. As part of
our Medici initiatives, we have formed a wholly-owned subsidiary Medici Ventures, Inc. ("Medici Ventures") and acquired a majority interest in a financial
technology company and two related registered broker dealers which are owned by our majority-owned subsidiary tØ.com, Inc. ("tZERO"). In 2018, tZERO
acquired a majority-ownership interest in a registered investment adviser entity and an accredited investor verification entity. Medici Ventures has also
purchased minority interests in several blockchain technology companies. In 2015, we were the first public company to issue a private security using
blockchain technology and in December 2016, as a demonstration of our technology, we issued publicly traded blockchain preferred shares of
Overstock.com, Inc.
Our company, based near Salt Lake City, Utah, was founded in 1997. We launched our initial website in March 1999 and were re-incorporated in
Delaware in 2002. As used herein, "Overstock," "Overstock.com,", "O.co," "we," "our" and similar terms include Overstock.com, Inc. and our majority-owned
subsidiaries, unless the context indicates otherwise.
Our Business
In our retail business, we deal primarily in price-competitive, new and replenishable merchandise and use the Internet to aggregate both supply and
demand to create an efficient marketplace for selling these products. We provide our customers an opportunity to conveniently shop for a broad range of
price-competitive products. We continually add new, and sometimes
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limited, inventory to our Website in order to create an atmosphere that encourages customers to visit frequently and purchase products before our inventory
sells out. We provide suppliers with access to a large customer base and convenient services for order fulfillment, customer service, returns handling, and
other services. The merchandise offered on our Website is from a variety of sources including well-known, brand-name manufacturers. We have organized our
retail business (sales of product offered through the Shopping Section of our Website) into two principal segments-a "direct" business and a "partner"
business. Consumers and businesses are able to access and purchase our products 24 hours a day from the convenience of a computer, Internet-enabled
mobile telephone or other Internet-enabled device. Our team of customer service representatives assists customers by telephone, instant online chat and email. We also derive revenue from other businesses advertising products or services on our Website. Our sales are primarily to customers located in the United
States.
Our retail direct business includes sales made to individual consumers and businesses from our owned inventory and that are fulfilled primarily from
our warehouse in Salt Lake City, Utah.
For our retail partner business, we sell merchandise from manufacturers, distributors and other suppliers ("partners") primarily through our Website.
We are considered to be the principal and control the specific good or service before it is transferred to the customer for the majority of these sales
transactions and we record revenue from the majority of these sales transactions on a gross basis. Our use of the term "partner" does not mean that we have
formed any legal partnerships with any of our partners. These third-party partners generally perform the same fulfillment operations as our warehouses, such
as order picking and shipping; however, we handle returns and customer service related to substantially all orders placed through our Website. Revenue
generated from sales on our Shopping site from both the direct and partner businesses is recorded net of returns, coupons and other discounts.
Both direct and partner revenues are seasonal, with revenues historically being the highest in the fourth quarter, which ends December 31, reflecting
higher consumer holiday spending. We anticipate this will continue for the foreseeable future. To the extent possible we maintain supplier relationships, and
seek new supplier relationships, for both our direct and partner businesses, and also use our working capital, to ensure a continuous allotment of product
offerings for our customers. Because a portion of our product offerings are closeout merchandise, some of our suppliers cannot supply products to us on a
continuous basis.
Medici business
Our Medici business initiatives seek to leverage the security, transparency and immutability of cryptographically protected, distributed ledgers,
such as blockchains, and are focused on solving important problems, including financial transaction issues, particularly in the area of securities settlement.
Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Medici Ventures, conducts its primary business through its majority-owned subsidiary tZERO, which includes a financial
technology company, two related registered broker dealers, a registered investment advisor, and an accredited investor verification company. Medici
Ventures also holds interests in several technology companies whose focuses include commercial blockchain applications, digital currency solutions,
compliance, identity, voting, and land.
As described further in Item 1 of Part I, "Financial Statements (Unaudited)"—Note 9. Business Segments, we determined our segments based on how
we manage our business, which, in our view, consists primarily of our Retail and Medici businesses. As described above, our Retail business consists of our
Direct and Partner reportable segments. We use gross profit as the measure to determine our reportable segments because there is not discrete financial
information available below gross profit for our Direct and Partner segments. As a result, our Medici business is not significant as compared to our Direct and
Partner segments and is included in Other. Our Other segment consists of Medici Ventures and its subsidiaries, including tZERO.
Executive Commentary
This executive commentary is intended to provide investors with a view of our business through the eyes of our management. As an executive
commentary, it necessarily focuses on selected aspects of our business. This executive commentary is intended as a supplement to, but not a substitute for,
the more detailed discussion of our business included elsewhere herein. Investors are cautioned to read our entire "Management's Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," as well as our interim and audited financial statements, and the discussion of our business and risk
factors and other information included elsewhere or incorporated in this report. This executive commentary includes forward-looking statements, and
investors are cautioned to read "Special Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements."
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Revenue in Q1 2018 increased 3% compared to Q1 2017. The growth in revenue was primarily driven by increased marketing expenses as we have
shifted our retail strategy to more aggressively pursue revenue growth and new customers. Our increased marketing expenses resulted in a 6% increase in
orders in Q1 2018, and we also saw a 3% increase in average order size primarily due to a continued sales mix shift into home and garden products. Average
order size is measured at the time of order, before promotional discounts and shipping revenue. These increases were partially offset by increased promotional
activities, including coupons and site sales (which we recognize as a reduction of revenue) due to our driving a higher proportion of our sales using such
promotions, and an increase in product sales for which we record only our commission as revenue.
We continue to experience difficulties which we believe are due in part to changes that Google, Inc. (“Google”) has made in its natural search engine
algorithms. It is taking us longer to analyze and to seek to adapt to the 2017 algorithm adjustments than it took us to respond to Google’s changes in
previous years. We have reorganized a large number of resources around addressing this current challenge, as well as seeking to prevent it from occurring
again. We have implemented a variety of innovations and technical improvements in this area and expect to continue to do so.
Gross profit in Q1 2018 increased 8% compared to Q1 2017 primarily as a result of revenue growth and increased gross margin. Gross margin
increased to 21.1% in Q1 2018 compared to 20.1% in Q1 2017 due to a continued shift in sales mix into higher margin home and garden products and an
increase in marketplace sales (for which we record only our commission as revenue), partially offset by increased promotional activities.
Sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of revenue increased from 8.7% to 17.3% during Q1 2018 as compared to Q1 2017, primarily due to
our recently adopted retail growth strategy to aggressively pursue increased revenue and new customers. This included increased spending in the sponsored
search, display ads on social media, and television marketing channels, as well as increased staff related costs.
While we work to adapt to Google's changes, we have increased our emphasis on other marketing channels, such as sponsored search, which has
generated revenue growth but with higher associated marketing expenses than natural search. We expect this trend to continue while we work to adapt to
these changes.
We are also experiencing an increasingly competitive digital marketing landscape. We have competitors who are spending significant amounts on
advertising bidding up the cost of certain marketing channels, such as paid keywords. We expect this trend to continue. However, we do have a number of
important digital marketing initiatives that we are testing and implementing that we believe will improve our competitive position in this area.
As a result of these factors, our contribution decreased 67% in Q1 2018 compared to Q1 2017 (see Non-GAAP Financial Measures below for a
reconciliation of Contribution to Gross Profit). Contribution margin was 3.7% in Q1 2018 compared to 11.6% in Q1 2017.
Technology expenses in Q1 2018 increased $2.3 million compared to Q1 2017, primarily due to an increase in staff related costs of $2.5 million and
an increase in technology licenses and maintenance of $1.7 million, partially offset by a decrease in depreciation of $1.3 million.
General and administrative expenses in Q1 2018 increased $17.1 million compared to Q1 2017, primarily due to an $8.8 million increase in
impairment losses on cryptocurrency holdings due to larger than normal cryptocurrency holdings as of March 31, 2018 related to the tZERO security token
offering and a large decrease in market values during Q1 2018, partially offset by an increase in realized gains on the sale of cryptocurrencies of $1.5 million.
We also had an increase in stock compensation expense of $4.4 million, including $3.4 million for a special tZERO restricted stock grant which fully vested
during the quarter. In addition, we had an increase in staff related costs of $2.4 million, and an increase in legal fees and consulting costs of $2.3 million,
including $1.0 million primarily due to the write-off of costs associated with an equity offering that we terminated in late March 2018, as well as costs related
to an SEC inquiry.
We continue to seek opportunities for growth, in our retail business and through our Medici blockchain and financial technology initiatives and
through other means. As a result of these initiatives, we will continue to incur additional expenses and may purchase interests in, or make acquisitions of,
other technologies or businesses. We anticipate that our initiatives may cause us to incur losses in the foreseeable future. These losses, additional expenses,
acquisitions or purchases may be material, and, coupled with existing marketing expense trends, our plans to increase our marketing and branding
expenditures, and
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strategic changes in our retail business, may lead to increased consolidated losses in some periods, and to reduced liquidity. Additionally, we may recognize
additional impairment charges from our ownership interest in other entities.
Subsequent to Q1 2018, we sold cryptocurrencies with a carrying value of approximately $6.0 million at March 31, 2018 and realized gains which
will partially offset the $8.8 million impairment losses on cryptocurrencies recognized in Q1 2018. In addition, we announced that Dr. Byrne's title and role
as Chief Executive Officer of Overstock will change to include President, Retail, effective May 8, 2018, and will also transition from his current role as Chief
Executive Officer of our indirect majority-owned subsidiary, tZERO, into a new position as tZERO's Executive Chairman. Saum Noursalehi, who is currently
our President, Retail, will move from that position to become Chief Executive Officer of tZERO.
The balance of our Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations provides further information about the
matters discussed above and other important matters affecting our business.
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Results of Operations
The following table sets forth our results of operations expressed as a percentage of total net revenue:
Three months ended
March 31,
2018

2017

(as a percentage of total net
revenue)

Revenue, net
Direct
Partner and other
Total net revenue

3.7 %
96.3

5.3 %
94.7

100.0

100.0

Cost of goods sold
Direct
Partner and other
Total cost of goods sold

3.3
75.6

4.8
75.1

78.9

79.9

Gross profit

21.1

20.1

Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing
Technology
General and administrative
Total operating expenses

17.3
7.0
8.9

8.7
6.7
5.2

33.3

20.6

Operating loss
Other expense, net
Loss before income taxes
Benefit from income taxes
Consolidated net loss

(12.2)
(0.1)

(0.5)
(1.0)

(12.3)
(0.1)

(1.5)
(0.1)

(12.2)%

(1.5)%

Comparisons of Three Months Ended March 31, 2018 to Three Months Ended March 31, 2017
Revenue
The following table reflects our net revenues for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 (in thousands):
Three months ended
March 31,
2018

Revenue, net
Direct
Partner and other
Total revenue, net

2017

$ Change

$

16,270
429,061

$

22,828
409,607

$

(6,558)
19,454

$

445,331

$

432,435

$

12,896

% Change

(28.7)%
4.7
3.0 %

The increased total net revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2018, as compared to the same period in 2017, was primarily driven by
increased marketing expenses as we have shifted our retail strategy to more aggressively pursue revenue growth and new customers. Our increased marketing
expenses resulted in a 6% increase in orders, and we also saw a 3% increase in average order size primarily due to a continued sales mix shift into home and
garden products. These increases were partially offset by increased promotional activities, including coupons and site sales (which we recognize as a
reduction of revenue) due to our driving a higher proportion of our sales using such promotions, and an increase in product sales for which we record only our
commission as revenue.
The decreased direct revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2018, as compared to the same period in 2017, was primarily due to a decrease in
sales of home and garden and clothing products, and increased promotional activities, including coupons and site sales due to our driving a higher
proportion of our sales using such promotions.
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The increase in partner revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2018, as compared to the same period in 2017, was primarily driven by
increased marketing expenses and an increase in sales of home and garden products. This increase was partially offset by increased promotional activities,
including coupons and site sales due to our driving a higher proportion of our sales using such promotions and an increase in product sales for which we
record only our commission as revenue.
We continue to seek increased participation in our Club O loyalty program, including, in certain instances, by increasing Club O Rewards to our
Club O members in lieu of coupons we offer to all customers. For additional information regarding our Club O loyalty program see Item 1 of Part I, "Financial
Statements (Unaudited)"—Note 2. Accounting Policies, Club O loyalty program.
The shift of business from direct to partner (or vice versa) is an economic result based on the economics of each particular product offering at the
time and we generally do not have particular goals for an "appropriate" mix or percentage for the size of either. Although we have experienced a trend from
direct revenue to partner revenue in recent years, we believe that the mix of the business between direct and partner remains consistent with our strategic
objectives for our business model and we do not currently foresee material shifts in this trend.
The products and product lines we offer, and their respective percentages of our revenue, are based on many factors including customer demand, our
marketing efforts, promotional pricing, joint-marketing offered by our suppliers, the types of inventory we are able to obtain and the number of SKUs we
offer. These factors change frequently and can affect the mix of the product lines we sell. We have experienced a trend toward our home and garden category
in recent years and we have recently focused our marketing and branding efforts towards our home and garden product line. We are also working to increase
the number of SKUs we offer. While we do not currently expect any material shifts in our product line mix, the relative amounts of the product lines we sell,
and the revenue we earn from those product lines, are generally an economic result of the factors described above, which may change from time to time.
International net revenues were less than 2% of total net revenues for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017.
Change in estimate of average transit times (days)
Revenue related to merchandise sales is recognized upon delivery to our customers. As we ship high volumes of packages through multiple carriers,
it is not practical for us to track the actual delivery date of each shipment. Therefore, we use estimates to determine which shipments are delivered and,
therefore, recognized as revenue at the end of the period. Our delivery date estimates are based on average shipping transit times. We review and update our
estimates on a quarterly basis based on our actual transit time experience. However, actual shipping times may differ from our estimates.
The following table shows the effect that hypothetical changes in the estimate of average shipping transit times would have had on the reported
amount of revenue and pre-tax income for the three months ended March 31, 2018 (in thousands):
Three Months Ended
March 31, 2018
Change in the
Estimate of Average
Transit Times (Days)

Increase
(Decrease)
Revenue

2
1
As reported
-1
-2

$
$
$
$

(24,753)
(11,048)
As reported
5,248
10,375

Increase
(Decrease) Pre-Tax
Income

$
$
$
$

(2,595)
(1,110)
As reported
633
1,176

Gross profit and gross margin
Our overall gross margins fluctuate based on our sales volume mix between our direct business and partner business; changes in supplier cost and /
or sales price; competitive pricing; inventory management decisions within the direct business; sales coupons and promotions; product mix of sales; and
operational and fulfillment costs.
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The following table reflects our net revenues, cost of goods sold and gross profit for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 (in
thousands):
Three months ended
March 31,
2018

Revenue, net
Direct
Partner and other
Total net revenue
Cost of goods sold
Direct
Partner and other
Total cost of goods sold
Gross Profit
Direct
Partner and other
Total gross profit

2017

$ Change

$

16,270
429,061

$

22,828
409,607

$

(6,558)
19,454

$

445,331

$

432,435

$

12,896

$

14,772
336,690

$

20,963
324,565

$

(6,191)
12,125

$

351,462

$

345,528

$

5,934

$

1,498
92,371

$

1,865
85,042

$

(367)
7,329

$

93,869

$

86,907

$

6,962

% Change

(28.7)%
4.7
3.0 %
(29.5)%
3.7
1.7 %
(19.7)%
8.6
8.0 %

Gross margins for the past five quarterly periods and fiscal year ending 2017 were:
Q1 2017

Direct
Partner and other
Combined

8.2%
20.8%
20.1%

Q2 2017

4.3%
20.3%
19.5%

Q3 2017

0.3%
20.7%
19.7%

Q4 2017

(2.3)%
19.7 %
18.8 %

FY 2017

3.0%
20.3%
19.5%

Q1 2018

9.2%
21.5%
21.1%

Gross profit for the three months ended March 31, 2018 increased 8% compared to the same period in 2017 primarily as a result of increased revenue
and increased gross margin. Gross margin increased to 21.1% for the three months ended March 31, 2018 compared to 20.1% for the same period in 2017.
The increase in gross margin was primarily due to a continued shift in sales mix into higher margin home and garden products and an increase in marketplace
sales (for which we record only our commission as revenue), partially offset by increased promotional activities.
The 103 basis point increase in direct gross margin for the three months ended March 31, 2018, as compared to the same period in 2017, was
primarily due to reduced product and warehousing costs, partially offset by increased promotional activities, including coupons and site sales due to our
driving a higher proportion of our sales using such promotions, and increased freight costs.
The 77 basis point increase in partner gross margin for the three months ended March 31, 2018, as compared to the same period in 2017 was
primarily due to a continued shift in sales mix into higher margin home and garden products and an increase in marketplace sales (for which we record only
our commission as revenue), partially offset by increased promotional activities.
Cost of goods sold includes stock-based compensation expense of $70,000 and $49,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.
Fulfillment costs
Fulfillment costs include all warehousing costs, including fixed overhead and variable handling costs (excluding packaging costs), as well as credit
card fees and customer service costs, all of which we include as costs in calculating gross margin. We believe that some companies in our industry, including
some of our competitors, account for fulfillment costs within operating expenses, and therefore exclude fulfillment costs from gross margin. As a result, our
gross margin may not be directly comparable to others in our industry.
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The following table has been included to provide investors additional information regarding our classification of fulfillment costs, gross profit and
margin, thus enabling investors to better compare our gross margin with others in our industry (in thousands):
Three months ended
March 31,
2018

Total revenue, net
Cost of goods sold
Product costs and other cost of goods sold
Fulfillment and related costs

$

Total cost of goods sold
Gross profit

$

2017

445,331

100%

333,521
17,941

74.9%
4.0%

351,462

78.9%

93,869

21.1%

$

$

432,435

100%

326,803
18,725

75.6%
4.3%

345,528

79.9%

86,907

20.1%

Fulfillment costs as a percentage of sales may vary due to several factors, such as our ability to manage costs at our warehouses, significant changes
in the number of units received and fulfilled, the extent to which we use third-party fulfillment services and warehouses, and our ability to effectively manage
customer service costs and credit card fees. Fulfillment and related costs decreased slightly during the three months ended March 31, 2018 as compared to the
same periods in 2017.
See "Gross profit" above for additional discussion.
Operating expenses
Sales and marketing expenses
We use a variety of methods to target our consumer audience, including online campaigns, such as advertising through keywords, product listing
ads, display ads, search engines, affiliate marketing programs, social coupon websites, portals, banners, e-mail, direct mail and viral and social media
campaigns. We also do brand advertising through television, radio, print ads, and event sponsorships.
The following table reflects our sales and marketing expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 (in thousands):
Three months ended
March 31,
2018

Sales and marketing expenses
Sales and marketing expenses as a percent of net revenues

$

77,214
17.3%

2017

$

37,618
8.7%

$ Change

$

39,596

% Change

105.3%

The 864 basis point increase in sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2018, as compared to
the same period in 2017 was primarily due to our recently adopted retail growth strategy to aggressively pursue increased revenue and new customers. This
included increased spending in the sponsored search, display ads on social media, and television marketing channels. We also had a $2.9 million increase in
marketing costs at tZERO for employee severance and a special restricted stock grant which fully vested during the quarter.
Sales and marketing expenses include stock-based compensation expense of $873,000 and $96,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively. The increase was primarily due to $600,000 of expense related to the tZERO equity awards granted, vested, and fully expensed in January
2018.
Costs associated with our discounted shipping and other promotions, such as coupons, are not included in sales and marketing expense. Rather, they
are accounted for as a reduction in revenue as they reduce the amount of consideration we expect to receive in exchange for goods or services and therefore
affect net revenues and gross margin. We consider discounted shipping and other promotions, such as our policy of free shipping on orders over $45, as an
effective marketing tool, and intend to continue to offer them as we deem appropriate as part of our overall marketing plan.
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Technology expenses
We seek to invest efficiently in technology, including web services, customer support solutions, website search, expansion of new and existing
product categories, and in investments in technology to enhance the customer experience, improve our process efficiency and support and expand our
logistics infrastructure. We expect to continue to increase our technology expenses to support these initiatives and these increases may be material.
The frequency and variety of cyberattacks on our Website, our corporate systems, and on third parties that we use to support our technology
continue to increase. The impact of such attacks, their costs, and the costs we incur to protect ourselves against future attacks have not been material.
However, we consider the threat from cyberattacks to be serious and will continue to incur costs related to efforts to protect ourselves against them.
The following table reflects our technology expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 (in thousands):
Three months ended
March 31,

Technology expenses
Technology expenses as a percent of net revenues

$

2018

2017

31,294
$
7.0%

28,992
$
6.7%

$ Change

2,302

% Change

7.9%

The $2.3 million increase in technology costs for the three months ended March 31, 2018, as compared to the same period in 2017, was primarily
due to an increase in staff related costs of $2.5 million including stock-based compensation described below and an increase in technology licenses and
maintenance of $1.7 million, partially offset by a decrease in depreciation of $1.3 million.
Technology expenses include stock-based compensation expense of $521,000 and $160,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.
General and administrative expenses
The following table reflects our general and administrative expenses ("G&A") for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 (in thousands):
Three months ended
March 31,

General and administrative expenses
General and administrative expenses as a percent of net revenues

$

2018

2017

39,755
$
8.9%

22,610
$
5.2%

$ Change

17,145

% Change

75.8%

The $17.1 million increase in general and administrative expenses ("G&A") for the three months ended March 31, 2018, as compared to the same
period in 2017, was primarily due to an $8.8 million increase in impairment losses on cryptocurrency holdings due to larger than normal cryptocurrency
holdings as of March 31, 2018 (primarily related to the tZERO security token offering) and a large decrease in market values during Q1 2018, partially offset
by an increase in realized gains on the sale of cryptocurrencies of $1.5 million. We also had an increase in stock compensation expense of $4.4 million,
including $3.4 million for a special tZERO restricted stock grant which fully vested during the quarter. In addition, we had an increase in staff related costs of
$2.4 million and an increase in legal fees and consulting costs of $2.3 million, including $1.0 million due to the write-off of costs associated with an equity
offering that we terminated in late March 2018, as well as costs related to an SEC inquiry.
G&A expenses include stock-based compensation expense of approximately $5.0 million and $635,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2018
and 2017, respectively. The increase was primarily due to $3.4 million of expense related to the tZERO equity awards granted, vested, and fully expensed in
January 2018.
We continue to seek opportunities for growth, in our retail business and through our Medici blockchain and financial technology initiatives and
through other means. As a result of these initiatives, we may continue to incur additional expenses or
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purchase ownership interests in, or acquire other technologies and businesses. We also anticipate that our Medici initiatives will incur losses in the near term.
These losses, additional expenses, acquisitions or purchases may be material, and, coupled with existing marketing expense trends and the seasonality of our
business, may lead to reduced consolidated income or losses in some periods, and to reduced liquidity. Additionally, we may recognize additional
impairment charges to our ownership interests in other entities.
Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation expense is classified within the corresponding operating expense categories on the consolidated statements of operations as follows (in
thousands):
Three months ended
March 31,
2018

Cost of goods sold - direct
Technology
General and administrative
Total depreciation, including internal-use software and website development

2017

$

83
5,478
1,020

$

83
6,685
930

$

6,581

$

7,698

Amortization of intangible assets other than goodwill is classified within the corresponding operating expense categories on the consolidated
statements of operations as follows (in thousands):
Three months ended
March 31,
2017

Technology
Sales and marketing
General and administrative
Total amortization of intangible assets other than goodwill

2016

$

755
119
44

$

905
20
20

$

918

$

945

Interest expense
Total interest expense increased $164,000, from $710,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2017 to $874,000 for the three months ended
March 31, 2018. The increase is primarily due to a higher interest rate on the restructured building loan that was finalized in Q4 2017.
Other expense, net
Other expense, net for the three months ended March 31, 2018 was $9,000 as compared to $3.7 million in 2017. The decrease is primarily due to a
decrease in asset impairment charges of $4.5 million.
Income taxes
Our income tax provision for interim periods is determined using an estimate of our annual effective tax rate adjusted for discrete items, if any, for
relevant interim periods. We update our estimate of the annual effective tax rate each quarter and make cumulative adjustments if our estimated annual
effective tax rate changes.
Our quarterly tax provision and our quarterly estimate of our annual effective tax rate are subject to significant variations due to several factors
including variability in predicting our pre-tax and taxable income and the mix of jurisdictions to which those items relate, relative changes in expenses or
losses for which tax benefits are not recognized, how we do business, fluctuations in our stock price, and changes in law, regulations, and administrative
practices. Our effective tax rate can be volatile based on the amount of pre-tax income. For example, the impact of discrete items on our effective tax rate is
greater when pre-tax income is lower.
Our benefit from income taxes for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 was $277,000 and $340,000. The effective tax rate for the three
months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 was 0.5% and 5.1%, respectively. The decrease in the
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effective tax rate is primarily attributable to a decrease in pre-tax income during the three months ended March 31, 2018 as compared to the same period in
2017, and partially attributable to the valuation allowance we are maintaining on our net deferred assets.
We have indefinitely reinvested foreign earnings of $1.5 million at March 31, 2018. The TCJA included a mandatory deemed repatriation of
cumulative foreign earnings for the year ended December 31, 2017, for which we accrued provisional tax expense. However, we would still need to accrue
and pay various other taxes on this amount if repatriated. We are currently analyzing our global working capital and cash requirements and the potential tax
liabilities attributable to a repatriation, but we have yet to determine whether we plan to change our prior assertion and repatriate earnings. Accordingly, we
have not recorded any deferred taxes attributable to our investments in our foreign subsidiaries. We will record the tax effects of any change in our prior
assertion in the period that we complete our analysis and are able to make a reasonable estimate, in the period that we are first able to make a reasonable
estimate, no later than December 2018.
We are subject to taxation in the United States and several state and foreign jurisdictions. Tax years beginning in 2013 are subject to examination
by taxing authorities, although net operating loss and credit carryforwards from all years are subject to examinations and adjustments for at least three years
following the year in which the attributes are used. We are under audit by the Ireland Revenue Agency for the calendar year 2016. We expect the audit to
continue during 2018.
Each quarter we assess the recoverability of our deferred tax assets under ASC 740. We assess the available positive and negative evidence to
estimate whether we will generate sufficient future taxable income to use our existing deferred tax assets. We have limited carryback ability and do not have
significant taxable temporary differences to recover our existing deferred tax assets, therefore we must rely on future taxable income, including tax planning
strategies, to support their realizability. We have established a valuation allowance for our deferred tax assets not supported by carryback ability or taxable
temporary differences, primarily due to uncertainty regarding our future taxable income. We have considered, among other things, the cumulative loss
incurred over the three-year period ended March 31, 2018 as a significant piece of objective negative evidence. We intend to continue maintaining a
valuation allowance on our net deferred tax assets until there is sufficient evidence to support the reversal of all or some portion of these allowances. The
amount of the deferred tax asset considered realizable could be adjusted if objective negative evidence in the form of cumulative losses is no longer present
and additional weight may be given to subjective evidence such as long-term projections for growth. We will continue to monitor the need for a valuation
allowance against our remaining deferred tax assets on a quarterly basis.
Seasonality
Based upon our historical experience, revenue typically increases during the fourth quarter because of the holiday retail season and gross margin
decreases due to increased sales of certain lower margin products, such as electronics. Revenue typically decreases in the following quarter(s), as shown in the
table below. The actual quarterly results for each quarter could differ materially depending upon consumer preferences, availability of product and
competition, among other risks and uncertainties. Accordingly, there can be no assurances that seasonal variations will not materially affect our results of
operations in the future.
The following table reflects our total net revenues for each of the quarters in 2018, 2017 and 2016 (in thousands):
First
Quarter

2018
2017
2016

$

445,331
432,435
413,677

Second
Quarter

$

N/A
432,024
418,540

Third
Quarter

$

N/A
424,007
441,564

Fourth
Quarter

$

N/A
456,290
526,182

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview
Although we believe that our cash and cash equivalents currently on hand and expected cash flows from future operations will be sufficient to
continue operations for at least the next twelve months, we also believe that we may need to raise additional capital and/or obtain significant additional debt
financing to be able to fully pursue some or all of our plans discussed below, including plans for increasing market share in our retail business while also
funding our Medici initiatives, beyond the next twelve months.
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We believe that some of our direct competitors spend significantly higher percentages of their revenue on marketing than we do, and we have
increased our branding and marketing expenditures in an effort to increase our market share in the e-commerce home goods market and educate consumers
about our current position as an online retailer offering a wide assortment of quality home goods and other products at low prices and with a high level of
customer service. We have developed and implemented marketing and branding initiatives in an effort to adjust to the competitive marketing landscape, and
believe that additional marketing and branding efforts will have significant long-term positive results. However, a continued significant increase in our
branding and marketing expenditures or other expenses could continue to have an adverse effect on our near-term financial results as it did in the first quarter
of 2018.
We also want to invest in additional distribution facilities to speed shipping and improve our customer service; in additional automation,
technology and engineering resources because we believe they can improve our customers' shopping experience and increase our sales; in our Club O
rewards program, primarily to increase member benefits and to develop additional personalization programs; and in expansion of our private label initiative
because we believe that private label brands can generate significant brand equity and customer loyalty.
Our Medici initiatives also require substantial funding. Medici Ventures and its majority-owned subsidiary, tZERO, continue to identify, evaluate
and pursue various opportunities for strategic acquisitions or purchases of interests to add to the services and expertise they offer their customers.
Current sources of liquidity
We believe that our cash and cash equivalents currently on hand and expected cash flows from future operations will be sufficient to continue
operations for at least the next twelve months. Our failure to generate sufficient revenues or profits or to obtain additional financing or raise additional capital
could have a material adverse effect on our operations and on our ability to achieve our business objectives. Any projections of future cash needs and cash
flows are subject to substantial uncertainty.
On November 8, 2017, we issued warrants to purchase up to a combined aggregate of 3,722,188 shares of our common stock to two purchasers in
privately negotiated transactions, for an aggregate purchase price of $6.5 million, net of issuance costs. The exercise price for the warrants was $40.45 per
share of common stock. On December 29, 2017, one of the warrant holders exercised its warrant in full and purchased a total of 2,472,188 shares of common
stock for $100.0 million. On January 17, 2018, the other warrant holder exercised its warrant in full and purchased 1,250,000 shares of common stock for
$50.6 million.
In December 2017, tZERO launched an offering (the "security token offering") of the right to acquire, if issued by tZERO in the future, tZERO
Preferred Equity Tokens (the "tZERO Security Token") through a Simple Agreement for Future Equity ("SAFE"). The security token offering is expected to
run through May 14, 2018 but may be extended or shortened and is subject to withdrawal rights under certain circumstances. As of March 31, 2018, tZERO
has received $92.9 million in cumulative proceeds, net of withdrawals, and incurred $16.0 million of offering costs.
Our principal sources of liquidity are cash flows generated from operations, and our existing cash and cash equivalents. At March 31, 2018, we had
cash and cash equivalents of $259.6 million.
Cash flow information is as follows (in thousands):
Three months ended
March 31,
2018

Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities

$

44

(10,182)
(41,950)
108,478

Twelve months ended
March 31,

2017

$

(23,097)
(12,489)
(11,172)

2018

$

(22,306)
(47,421)
192,973

2017

$

50,970
(70,700)
27,881
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Cash flows from operating activities
For the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, our operating activities resulted in net cash outflows of $10.2 million and $23.1 million,
respectively.
Cash received from customers generally corresponds to our net revenues as our customers primarily use credit cards to buy from us causing our
receivables from these sales transactions to settle quickly. We have payment terms with our partners that generally extend beyond the amount of time
necessary to collect proceeds from our customers. As a result, following our typically seasonally strong fourth quarter sales, at December 31 of each year, our
cash, cash equivalents, accounts payable and accrued liability balances normally reach their highest level (other than as a result of cash flows provided by or
used in investing and financing activities).
The $10.2 million of net cash used in operating activities during the three months ended March 31, 2018 was primarily due to consolidated net loss
of $54.5 million, offset by increases in accrued liabilities of $9.3 million and accounts payable of $4.3 million, decrease in accounts receivable of $8.3
million, depreciation expense of $6.6 million, and stock-based compensation of $6.4 million. Accrued liabilities increased due to the increase in marketing
expense as a result of our initiative to drive revenue growth with significant marketing efforts. Accounts payable increased due to the revenue growth during
2018.
The $23.1 million of net cash used in operating activities during the three months ended March 31, 2017 was primarily due to decreases in accounts
payable of $20.5 million and accrued liabilities of $13.7 million, and consolidated net loss of $6.3 million. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
decreased due to seasonality which caused high balances at year-end 2016 and a significant decline during 2017. The net cash used in operating activities
during the three months ended March 31, 2017 was partially offset by non-cash depreciation expense of $7.7 million, a decrease in accounts receivable of
$6.5 million and an impairment of an equity investment of $4.5 million.
Cash flows from investing activities
For the three months ended March 31, 2018, investing activities resulted in net cash outflows of $42.0 million primarily due to $17.0 million
investment in equity securities, $11.8 million acquisition of business, net of cash acquired, $9.2 million purchase of intangible assets, and $4.0 million of
expenditures for fixed assets.
For the three months ended March 31, 2017, investing activities resulted in net cash outflows of $12.5 million primarily due to $11.3 million of
expenditures for fixed assets.
Cash flows from financing activities
For the three months ended March 31, 2018, financing activities resulted in net cash inflows of $108.5 million primarily due to $62.1 million
proceeds from security token offering, $50.6 million proceeds from exercise of stock warrants, offset by $4.0 million of taxes withheld upon vesting of
restricted stock.
For the three months ended March 31, 2017, financing activities resulted in net cash outflows of $11.2 million primarily due to the purchase of
treasury stock for $10.0 million.
Free cash flow
"Free Cash Flow" (a non-GAAP measure) for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, was $(14.2) million and $(34.4) million,
respectively, and $(38.6) million and $(13.1) million for the twelve months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. See Non-GAAP Financial
Measures below for a reconciliation of Free Cash Flow to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities.
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments
The following table summarizes our contractual obligations as of March 31, 2018 and the effect such obligations and commitments are expected to
have on our liquidity and cash flow in future periods (in thousands):
Payments Due by Period
Contractual Obligations

Remainder of
2018

PCL term loan payments
Operating leases
Purchase obligations
Technology services
Total contractual cash obligations

2019

40,000
5,232
4,927
1,485
$

51,644

2020

—
6,733
—
2,031
$

8,764

2021

—
4,292
—
1,693
$

5,985

2022

—
4,335
—
—
$

4,335

Thereafter

—
4,439
—
—
$

4,439

Total

—
16,356
—
—
$

16,356

40,000
41,387
4,927
5,209
$

91,523

PCL term loan payments
We are party to a financing agreement related to our corporate headquarters (see Borrowings below). On May 8, 2018, we terminated and repaid the
PCL term loan.
Operating leases
From time to time we enter into operating leases for facilities and equipment for use in our operations.
Purchase obligations
The amount of purchase obligations shown above is based on assumptions regarding the legal enforceability against us of inventory purchase orders
we had outstanding at March 31, 2018. Under different assumptions regarding our rights to cancel our purchase orders or different assumptions regarding the
enforceability of the purchase orders under applicable law, the amount of purchase obligations shown in the table above would be less.
Technology services
From time to time we enter into long-term contractual agreements for technology services and capital leases for equipment included in such service
agreements.
Tax contingencies
We are involved in various tax matters, the outcomes of which are uncertain. As of March 31, 2018, accrued tax contingencies were $1.5 million.
Changes in state, federal, and foreign tax laws may increase our tax contingencies. The timing of the resolution of income tax contingencies is highly
uncertain, and the amounts ultimately paid, if any, upon resolution of issues raised by the taxing authorities may differ from the amounts accrued. It is
reasonably possible that within the next 12 months we will receive additional assessments by various tax authorities. These assessments may or may not
result in changes to our contingencies related to positions on prior years' tax filings.
Borrowings
PCL L.L.C. term loan agreement
On November 6, 2017, we entered into a loan agreement with PCL L.L.C., an entity directly or indirectly wholly-owned by the mother and brother of
our Chief Executive Officer, Dr. Patrick Byrne. The agreement provides for a $40.0 million term loan (the "PCL Loan") which carries an annual interest rate
of 8.0% and a default rate of 18.0%. The PCL Loan is for a term of 18 months, subject to mandatory prepayment under certain circumstances, and is
prepayable at our election at any time without penalty or premium. Interest only is due monthly. There are no financial covenants associated the PCL Loan.
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The principal amount and any then unpaid interest will be due and payable on May 1, 2019 subject to mandatory prepayment in the event of a sale
or encumbrance of the headquarters building or a change of ownership of Overstock or the occurrence of certain other events, including material changes to
Overstock's business, the loss of management control of Overstock by Dr. Patrick Byrne and other events. The PCL Loan is secured by our corporate
headquarters and the related land, fixtures and certain related personal property. Capitalized debt issuance costs with the new loan agreement are
insignificant.
At March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, our outstanding balance on the PCL Loan was $40.0 million. Amounts outstanding under the loan are
presented net of discount and issuance costs in our consolidated balance sheets. On May 8, 2018, our Board of Directors approved a prepayment of the PCL
Loan and we repaid the entire outstanding balance under the loan plus accrued interest.
U.S. Bank letters of credit
At March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, letters of credit totaling $280,000 and $355,000, were issued on our behalf collateralized by
compensating cash balances held at U.S. Bank, which are included in Restricted cash in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
U.S. Bank commercial purchasing card agreement
We have a commercial purchasing card (the "Purchasing Card") agreement with U.S. Bank. We use the Purchasing Card for business purpose
purchasing and must pay it in full each month. At March 31, 2018, $1.4 million was outstanding and $3.6 million was available under the Purchasing Card.
At December 31, 2017, $822,000 was outstanding and $4.2 million was available under the Purchasing Card.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial condition,
changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources that would be material to
investors.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
The preparation of our financial statements requires that we make estimates and judgments. We base these on historical experience and on other
assumptions that we believe to be reasonable. Our critical accounting policies are discussed in Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations" section of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017, and our accounting policies and use
of estimates are further discussed in Item 1 of Part I, "Financial Statements (Unaudited)"—Note 2. Accounting Policies, contained in the "Notes to Unaudited
Consolidated Financial Statements" of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. and elsewhere in this Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.
During Q1 2018, we implemented ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) on a modified retrospective basis and
recognized $5.0 million of additional breakage income related to the unredeemed portion of our gift cards and loyalty program rewards through a cumulative
effect adjustment in retained earnings as of January 1, 2018. In addition, we now recognize estimated breakage on our gift cards and loyalty program rewards
in Partner and other revenue in the consolidated statement of operations rather as a component of Other expense, net. The adoption of these new accounting
standards is discussed further in Item 1 of Part I, "Financial Statements (Unaudited)"—Note 2. Accounting Policies, contained in the "Notes to Unaudited
Consolidated Financial Statements" of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. There have been no other material changes to the critical accounting policies
previously disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017.
For information about recently issued accounting standards not yet adopted, see Recently issued accounting standards not yet adopted, included in
Item 1 of Part I, "Financial Statements (Unaudited)"—Note 2. Accounting Policies, contained in the "Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements"
of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
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Non-GAAP Financial Measures
Regulation G, Conditions for Use of Non-GAAP Financial Measures, and other SEC regulations regulate the disclosure of certain non-GAAP
financial information.
Contribution and contribution margin
Contribution and contribution margin (non-GAAP financial measures - which we reconcile to "Gross Profit" in our consolidated statement of
operations) consist of gross profit less sales and marketing expense plus Club O Rewards and gift card breakage and reflects an additional way of viewing our
results. Contribution margin is contribution as a percentage of total net revenue. This change doesn't impact the calculation of contribution. We believe
contribution and contribution margin provide management and users of the financial statements information about our ability to cover our operating costs,
such as technology and general and administrative expenses, while reflecting the selling costs we incurred to generate our revenues and adding back Club O
Rewards and gift card breakage. Contribution and contribution margin are used in addition to and in conjunction with results presented in accordance with
GAAP and should not be relied upon to the exclusion of GAAP financial measures. The material limitation associated with the use of contribution is that it is
an incomplete measure of profitability as it does not include all operating expenses or all non-operating income and expenses. Management compensates for
these limitations when using this measure by looking at other GAAP measures, such as operating income (loss) and net income (loss). You should review our
financial statements and publicly-filed reports in their entirety and not rely on any single financial measure.
For further details on contribution and contribution margin, see the reconciliation of these non-GAAP financial measures below (in thousands):
Three months ended
March 31,
2018

Total net revenue

$

Cost of goods sold
Gross profit

445,331
351,462
93,869
77,214
—

Less: Sales and marketing expense
Plus: Club O Rewards and gift card breakage (1)
Contribution and contribution margin
___________________________________________

$

16,655

2017

100% $
78.9
21.1
17.3
—
3.7% $

432,435
345,528

100%
79.9

86,907
37,618
671

20.1
8.7
0.2

49,960

11.6%

(1) — Effective January 1, 2018, we made a change in accounting principle to present Club O Rewards and gift card breakage in Partner and other
revenue instead of Other expense, net on our consolidated statements of operations. This change impacts the presentation of Revenue, Gross
profit and Other expense, net, but does not impact the calculation of contribution.
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Our calculation of our contribution and contribution margin by Retail Total (which consists of Direct and Partner) and Other (which consists of
Medici) is set forth below (in thousands):
Three months ended
March 31,
Direct

2018
Total net revenue
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Less: Sales and marketing expense

Partner

Retail Total

Total

$

16,270 $
14,772

423,726 $
332,808

439,996
347,580

$

5,335
3,882

$

445,331
351,462

$

1,498 $

90,918 $

92,416
73,917

$

1,453
3,297

$

93,869
77,214

$

18,499

$

(1,844)

$

16,655

Contribution (1)
Contribution margin
2017
Total net revenue
Cost of goods sold

Other

4.2%

(34.6)%

3.7%

$

22,828 $
20,963

405,261 $
321,297

428,089
342,260

$

4,346
3,268

$

432,435
345,528

Gross profit
$
Less: Sales and marketing expense
Plus: Club O Rewards and gift card breakage (included in Other
expense, net)

1,865 $

83,964 $

85,829
37,325

$

1,078
293

$

86,907
37,618

$

49,175

$

785

$

49,960

671

Contribution
Contribution margin
___________________________________________

11.5%

—
18.1 %

671
11.6%

(1) — Effective January 1, 2018, we made a change in accounting principle to present Club O Rewards and gift card breakage in Partner and other
revenue instead of Other expense, net on our consolidated statements of operations. This change impacts the presentation of Revenue, Gross
profit and Other expense, net, but does not impact the calculation of contribution.
Retail and Medici pre-tax income or loss
Retail and Medici pre-tax income or loss (non-GAAP financial measures - which we reconcile to Consolidated pre-tax income or loss) consists of
income or loss before taxes of our Retail (which consists of Direct and Partner) and Medici (which is included in Other) businesses, excluding intercompany
transactions eliminated in consolidation. We believe these measures provide management and users of the financial statements useful information because
they provide financial results for our separate businesses which are distinct in nature. The material limitation associated with these measures is that they are
an incomplete measure of our consolidated operations. These measures should be used in addition to and in conjunction with results presented in accordance
with GAAP and should not be relied upon to the exclusion of GAAP financial measures. You should review our financial statements and publicly-filed
reports in their entirety and not rely on any single financial measure. For additional information regarding our segment reporting, and a reconciliation of
Retail and Medici pre-tax income or loss, please see Item 1 of Part I, "Financial Statements (Unaudited)"—Note 9. Business Segments, contained in the "Notes
to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements" of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
Free cash flow
Free cash flow (a non-GAAP financial measure) reflects an additional way of viewing our cash flows and liquidity that, when viewed with our GAAP
results, provides a more complete understanding of factors and trends affecting our cash flows and liquidity. Free cash flow, which we reconcile below to "Net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities," the nearest GAAP financial measure, is net cash provided by operating activities reduced by "Expenditures
for fixed assets, including internal-use software and website development." We believe that net cash provided by operating activities is an important measure,
since it includes both the cash impact of the continuing operations of the business and changes in the balance sheet that impact cash. We believe free cash
flow is a useful measure to evaluate our business since purchases of fixed assets are a necessary component of ongoing operations and free cash flow measures
the amount of cash we have available for mandatory debt service and financing obligations, changes in our capital structure, and future investments after
purchases of
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fixed assets. Free cash flow measures have limitations as they omit certain components of the overall consolidated statement of cash flows and do not
represent the residual cash flow available for discretionary expenditures. Free cash flow should not be considered a substitute for net income (loss) or cash
flow data prepared in accordance with GAAP and may not be comparable to similarly titled measures used by other companies. Therefore, we believe it is
important to view free cash flow as a complement to our entire consolidated statements of cash flows as reconciled below (in thousands):
Three months ended
March 31,
2018

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities
Expenditures for fixed assets, including internal-use software and website
development

$

(10,182)

Free cash flow

$

(14,211)

Twelve months ended
March 31,

2017

$

(4,029)

(23,097)

2018

$

(11,344)
$

(34,441)

(22,306)

2017

$

(16,271)
$

(38,577)

50,970
(64,033)

$

(13,063)

Government Regulation
Our e-commerce business is subject to general business regulations and laws, as well as regulations and laws specifically governing the Internet, ecommerce and other services. Existing and future laws and regulations may result in increasing expense and may impede our growth. These regulations and
laws cover taxation, privacy, data protection, pricing, content, copyrights, distribution, mobile communications, electronic device certification, electronic
waste, energy consumption, environmental regulation, electronic contracts and other communications, competition, consumer protection, information
reporting requirements, the design and operation of websites, and the characteristics and quality of products and services. New state tax regulations in states
where we do not now collect state and local taxes may subject us to the obligation to collect and remit state and local taxes, or subject us to additional state
and local sales and income taxes, or to requirements intended to assist states with their tax collection efforts. New legislation or regulations, the application
of laws and regulations from jurisdictions whose laws do not currently apply to our business or the application of existing laws and regulations to the Internet
and commercial online services could result in significant additional taxes on our business. These taxes or tax collection obligations could have an adverse
effect on us. Further, there is a possibility that we may be subject to significant fines or other payments for any past failures to comply with these
requirements. In addition, it is not clear how existing laws governing issues such as property ownership, libel, and personal privacy apply to the Internet, ecommerce and digital content. Laws and regulations may diminish the demand for our products and services and increase our cost of doing business. Certain
of our services are subject to federal and state consumer protection laws, including laws protecting the privacy of consumer information and regulations
prohibiting unfair and deceptive trade practices. In particular, under federal and state financial privacy laws and regulations, we must provide notice to
consumers of our policies on sharing non-public information with third parties, advance notice of any changes to our policies and, with limited exceptions,
we must give consumers the right to prevent sharing of their non-public personal information with unaffiliated third parties. Further, the growth and demand
for online commerce could result in more stringent consumer protection laws that could impose additional compliance burdens on us. These consumer
protection laws could result in substantial compliance costs.
In addition, our broker dealers are subject to additional extensive regulatory requirements under federal and state laws and regulations and selfregulatory organization ("SRO") rules. Broker dealers are subject to regulation, examination and disciplinary action by the SEC, FINRA and state securities
regulators, as well as other governmental authorities and SROs with which they are registered or licensed or of which they are members. See our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017, Part I - Item 1A - "Risk Factors - PRO Securities and SpeedRoute, two subsidiaries of tZERO that
currently generate substantially all of tZERO's revenues, are registered broker-dealers and are subject to extensive regulation."
Our efforts to expand our sales outside of the U.S. expose us to additional U.S. and foreign laws and regulations, including but not limited to, laws
and regulations relating to taxation, business licensing or certification requirements, advertising practices, online services, the use of cryptocurrency, the
importation of specified or proscribed items, importation quotas, consumer protection, intellectual property rights, consumer and data protection, privacy,
encryption, restrictions on pricing or discounts, and the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and other applicable U.S. and foreign laws prohibiting corrupt
payments to government officials and other third parties. Our ownership interest in Bitt Inc. also may expose us to additional laws and regulations relating to
money transmitters and money services businesses. See our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017, Part I - Item 1A - "Risk
Factors - Our ownership interest in Bitt Inc. may expose us to additional risks."
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Other Factors that May Affect Future Results
We believe that our cash and cash equivalents currently on hand and expected cash flows from future operations will be sufficient to continue
operations for at least the next twelve months. Any projections of future cash needs and cash flows are subject to substantial uncertainty, including those set
forth under Item 1A of Part II, "Risk Factors" of this report and in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017, Part I - Item 1A
- "Risk Factors."
We periodically evaluate opportunities to repurchase our equity securities, obtain credit facilities, or issue additional debt or equity securities. In
addition, we may, from time to time, consider purchases of equity interests in, or acquisition of, complementary businesses, products, services, or
technologies, any of which might affect our liquidity requirements or cause us to issue additional debt or equity securities. There can be no assurance that
financing arrangements will be available in amounts or on terms acceptable to us, if at all, especially considering we recently announced a public equity
offering on March 26, 2018 but terminated the offering shortly thereafter following a significant decline in the price of our common stock.
Any investment in our securities involves a high degree of risk. Investors should consider carefully the risks and uncertainties described in this
Form 10-Q, including the risks described in Item 1A of Part II, "Risk Factors" of this report and in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2017, Part I - Item 1A - "Risk Factors," and all other information in this Form 10-Q and in our other filings with the SEC including those
we file after we file this Form 10-Q, before deciding whether to purchase or hold our securities. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or
that we currently deem immaterial may also become important factors that may harm our business. The occurrence of any of the risks described under "Risk
Factors" in this report or in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017 could harm our business. The trading price of our
securities could decline due to any of these risks and uncertainties, and investors may lose part or all of their investment.
ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Our financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, trade accounts and contracts receivable, accounts payable and long-term obligations.
We consider highly-liquid instruments with a remaining maturity of 90 days or less at the date of purchase to be cash equivalents. We currently do not hold
any derivative financial instruments or foreign exchange contracts.
Our exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to our short-term investments and short-term obligations; thus, fluctuations
in interest rates would not have a material impact on the fair value of these securities. However, the fair values of our investments may be subject to
fluctuations due to volatility of the stock market in general, investment-specific circumstances, and changes in general economic conditions.
At March 31, 2018, we had $259.6 million in cash and cash equivalents. Hypothetically, an increase or decrease in interest rates of one hundred
basis points would have an estimated impact of $2.6 million on our earnings or loss, or the cash flows of these instruments.
At March 31, 2018, letters of credit totaling $280,000 were outstanding under our credit facilities. Hypothetically, an increase or decrease in interest
rates of one hundred basis points would have an estimated impact of $2,800 on our earnings or loss if the letters of credit were fully drawn.
At March 31, 2018, we had cryptocurrency-denominated assets totaling $9.0 million. Hypothetically, a decrease in the market value of one hundred
basis points would have an estimated impact of $90,000 on our earnings or loss, and the recorded value of these instruments. Reported earnings resulting
from increases in the market value of cryptocurrency would be limited to realized gains.
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
We maintain disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the "Exchange Act"). The term disclosure controls and procedures means controls and other procedures of an issuer that are designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by the issuer in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported, within the time periods specified in the Commission's rules and forms.
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Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed
by an issuer in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the issuer's management, including its
principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
We carried out an evaluation required by the Exchange Act under the supervision and with the participation of our principal executive officer and
principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the
Exchange Act, as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by us in the
reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and
forms and to provide reasonable assurance that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive
officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
Beginning January 1, 2018, we implemented ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). In connection with its adoption,
we implemented changes to our processes and internal control activities over financial reporting to ensure compliance with the new accounting and
disclosure rules.
Except for the preceding changes, there has not occurred any change in our internal control over financial reporting that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives as specified above. Management
does not expect, however, that our disclosure controls and procedures will prevent or detect all error and fraud. Any control system, no matter how well
designed and operated, is based upon certain assumptions and can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that its objectives will be met. Further, no
evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that misstatements due to error or fraud will not occur or that all control issues and instances of fraud, if
any, within the Company have been detected.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
The information set forth under Item 1 of Part I, "Financial Statements "—Note 6—"Commitments and Contingencies," subheading "Legal
Proceedings and Contingencies," contained in the "Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements" of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q is
incorporated by reference in answer to this Item.
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Other than the risk factors set forth below, there are no material changes from the risk factors previously disclosed in Part I - Item 1A - "Risk Factors,"
of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017.
We and tZERO have each recently received notice that the staff of the SEC's Division of Enforcement is conducting an investigation and has requested
information regarding the tZERO security token offering.
In February 2018, the Division of Enforcement of the SEC informed tZERO and subsequently informed us that it is conducting an investigation and
requested that we and our affiliates, including Medici Ventures and tZERO voluntarily provide certain information and documents related to tZERO and the
tZERO security token offering in connection with its investigation. We are cooperating fully with the SEC in connection with its investigation, which will
require the time and attention of tZERO and our personnel, and may have an adverse effect on our ability to focus attention on our businesses and our ability
to raise capital. In addition, the investigation could result in a delay of the tZERO security token offering, negative publicity for tZERO or us, and may have
a material adverse effect on us or on the current and future business ventures of tZERO.
We have recently been sued in a purported class action.
Following our announcement of an SEC investigation (see " - We and tZERO have each recently received notice that the staff of the SEC's Division
of Enforcement is conducting an investigation and has requested information regarding the tZERO security token offering."), a purported class action
complaint was filed against us, Patrick Byrne and Jonathan E. Johnson III, in the United States District Court, District of Utah, Central Division. The lawsuit
alleges violations of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") in connection with allegedly false and misleading statements made by the
Company relating to tZERO's Initial Coin Offering and the announcement of an SEC investigation. The plaintiffs seek class certification, an award of
unspecified compensatory damages, and other relief as the Court may deem just and proper. Another substantially similar complaint was filed shortly
thereafter, also naming us, Dr. Byrne and Mr. Johnson as defendants, bringing the same claims under the Exchange Act, and seeking substantially similar
relief. (see " - Legal Proceedings"). Dr. Byrne and Mr. Johnson are each executive officers of the Company and members of our board of directors, and we have
indemnification agreements and obligations with each of them. Regardless of the outcome of this matter, we expect to incur costs, and the costs may be
material. An unfavorable resolution of any substantial litigation matter, including these lawsuits, could have a material adverse effect on our financial results
and business.
Each of our offerings faces specialized competition and involves regulatory risks.
Our traditional e-commerce offerings as well as the financial products or services we offer or advertise face specialized competition and in many
cases involve regulatory risks. We offer or advertise a variety of services and product offerings, including advertising related to automobiles and for various
types of financial products or services, including loans, credit cards and insurance offerings, discounted stock brokerage services, automated investment
advisory services, and other products or services, including those offered through our Website's FinanceHub. Each of these is subject substantial competition
from competitors specializing in these types of products or services. In addition, many of them are subject to substantial regulation. For example, many states
and other jurisdictions, including Utah, where we are located, have regulations governing the conduct of automobile sellers and public advertising for
automobile sales. All of the financial services or products we offer or advertise are subject to substantial regulation. We generally have no ability to know
whether the information the automobile advertisers or other advertisers provide is correct. More generally, we have no ability to ensure that our partners or
others with whom we do business will comply with all laws and regulations applicable to them and their transactions. Any negative publicity we receive
regarding any allegations of unlawful or deceptive conduct may damage our reputation, our ability to attract new customers to our main shopping site, and
our brand name generally. The occurrence of any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on our financial results and business.
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Our decision to accept and hold cryptocurrency, such as bitcoin, may subject us to exchange risk and additional tax and regulatory requirements.
In January 2014, we began accepting bitcoin as a form of payment for purchases on our website, and we now accept approximately 50 different
cryptocurrencies. Neither bitcoin nor any of the other cryptocurrencies that we accept are considered legal tender or backed by any government, and bitcoin
and other cryptocurrencies have experienced price volatility, technological glitches and various law enforcement and regulatory interventions. In September
2014, we began accepting bitcoin internationally. The use of cryptocurrency such as bitcoin has been prohibited or effectively prohibited in some countries.
If we fail to comply with regulations or prohibitions applicable to us, we could face regulatory or other enforcement actions and potential fines and other
consequences. Our Board of Directors has authorized us to hold, in bitcoin, up to 50% of our sales revenues paid for by customers in bitcoin. From time to
time we hold bitcoin and other cryptocurrencies directly, and we have exchange rate risk on the amounts we hold as well as the risks that regulatory or other
developments may adversely affect the value of the cryptocurrencies we hold. At March 31, 2018, we held larger than normal cryptocurrency holdings due to
the tZERO security token offering, with a carrying value of $9.0 million net of $8.8 million impairment charges recognized during the quarter due to a large
decrease in market values during Q1 2018. We may choose not to hedge or may be unable to fully hedge our exposure to cryptocurrencies and may at times
be unable to convert cryptocurrencies to U.S. dollars. We could suffer significant monetary losses if the cryptocurrencies that we hold decline further in value
or if we sell any or all of the cryptocurrencies at current prices. If any regulatory authority asserts that we require a license or other regulatory approval to
conduct business or own an interest in other businesses involving cryptocurrencies, it could have a material adverse effect on our financial results and
business.
tZERO's security token offering may not be consummated; if the terms of the security token offering are materially amended tZERO will provide
purchasers in the security token offering with withdrawal rights.
At present, the net proceeds of the security token offering are expected to be used for (i) the repayment of amounts payable to the Company, (ii)
strategic equity acquisitions of interests in companies relevant to the network tZERO is trying to build, (iii) the future development of the tZERO Security
Tokens and the Token Trading System, (iv) the development of functional utility features for the tZERO Security Tokens, (v) general corporate purposes,
which may include capital expenditures, acquisitions, debt repayments, cybersecurity upgrades, augmenting technology, infrastructure and personnel,
development of products and services, and short term investments, among other things, (vi) lobbying law makers and regulatory authorities for the purpose of
bringing about changes to laws and regulations related to blockchain technologies, particularly in regards to securities tokens, and (vii) offering, legal and
accounting expenses associated with the security token offering. The failure by tZERO's management to apply these funds effectively could have a material
adverse effect on tZERO. If the security token offering is not consummated or does not result in substantial proceeds, it could have a material adverse effect
on tZERO's ability to fund these objectives and carry out its business plan. If the security token offering is not consummated, tZERO would have to reduce its
planned expenditures and/or would require substantial additional funding from us or other sources in order to carry out its business plan. Since the
commencement of the security token offering through March 31, 2018, tZERO has utilized approximately $28.2 million of the security token offering
proceeds towards the acquisition of ownership interests in other entities, excluding amounts that may become due in connection with the transactions
contemplated by the WPS LOI or any transactions described under "Company Overview-Medici Business Initiatives-Non-blockchain Services-Other
Potential Acquisitions." tZERO is also pursuing several potential strategic acquisitions of interests in companies. If the security token offering is not
consummated, and if tZERO were unable to obtain adequate funding from other sources, we would be required to make decisions about which businesses and
projects to fund, and might be required to decrease or eliminate expenditures that we and/or tZERO believe would have been advisable.
If the terms of the security token offering are materially amended, tZERO will provide purchasers that have previously funded their commitment the
right to withdraw from the offering, and any purchasers who withdraw will have a right to the return of the funds they previously committed to the security
token offering. Any such withdrawals could result in significantly less proceeds from the security token offering, which could have a material adverse effect
on tZERO's ability to fund its business plan. In addition, tZERO may require additional funding from us or other sources to repay amounts withdrawn by any
purchasers who withdraw from the security token offering, and such amounts could be substantial.
Sales by our significant stockholders could have an adverse effect on the market price of common stock and preferred stock.
A small number of our stockholders own a significant percentage of our common stock. Our Chief Executive Officer Patrick Byrne is the beneficial
owner of approximately 22.2% of our outstanding shares. Various trusts related to his mother Dorothy Byrne are the beneficial owners of an additional
aggregate of approximately 5.5% of our stock. Sales by Dr. Byrne or any of such trusts could have a material adverse effect on the market prices of our
common stock and preferred stock. Dr. Byrne
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and/or entities he controls, including High Plains Investments LLC, may sell shares in the near future and/or may enter into a Rule 10b5-1 plan for the sale of
shares in the future. In addition, the transfer of ownership of a significant portion of our outstanding shares within a three-year period could adversely affect
our ability to use our net operating losses to offset future taxable net income. Any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on the holders of our
common stock and holders of our preferred stock.
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
Unregistered issuance of equity securities
None.
Issuer purchases of equity securities
None.
Limitations upon the payment of dividends
We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain any earnings for future growth and do not
anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. Any future determination to pay dividends on our common stock will
be at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend on our results of operations, financial conditions, contractual and legal restrictions and other
factors the board of directors deems relevant.
In December 2016, we issued a total of 695,898 shares of our preferred stock (the "Preferred Stock"), of which 681,259 shares remained outstanding
at March 31, 2018. The Preferred Stock ranks senior to our common stock with respect to dividends. Holders of the Preferred Stock are entitled to an annual
cash dividend of $0.16 per share, in preference to any dividend payment to the holders of the common stock, out of funds legally available for payment of
dividends and subject to declaration by our Board of Directors. Holders of the Preferred Stock are also entitled to participate in any cash dividends we pay to
the holders of the common stock and are also entitled to participate in non-cash dividends we pay to holders of the common stock, subject to potentially
different treatment if we effect a stock dividend, stock split or combination of the common stock. There are no arrearages in cumulative preferred dividends.
We declared and paid a cash dividend of $0.16 per share on our preferred stock during 2017.
ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
None.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

(a)

Exhibits

*10.1
10.2

10.3

10.4

*31.1
*31.2
*32.1
*32.2
101

t0.com, Inc. 2017 Equity Incentive Plan (1)
Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of January 22, 2018 but signed on February 7, 2018 among Rental Roost, Inc.,
Kishore Kumar, Nitin Shingate, Vikram Raghavan, and Overstock.com, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 9, 2018 (File No. 000-49799)).
Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of January 22, 2018 but signed on February 7, 2018 among Houserie, Inc., Kishore
Kumar, Nitin Shingate, Vikram Raghavan, and Overstock.com, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to our
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 9, 2018 (File No. 000-49799)).
Amendment 1 dated March 29, 2018 to Memorandum of Understanding by and among Overstock.com, Inc., Medici
Ventures, Inc., Patrick M. Byrne and Hernando de Soto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on April 4, 2018 (File No. 000-49799)).
Exhibit 31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Exhibit 31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Exhibit 32.1 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Exhibit 32.2 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Attached as Exhibit 101 to this report are the following documents formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting
Language): (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) Consolidated Statements of Operations, (iii) Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income (Loss), (iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, (v) Consolidated Statements of Stockholders'
Equity, and (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

______________________________________
* Filed herewith.
(1) — Previously filed as Exhibit 10.24 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 15, 2018 (File No. 000-49799) but refiled with this Form
10-Q as the document previously filed was inadvertently filed in an incomplete form.
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SIGNATURE
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
Date:

May 8, 2018

OVERSTOCK.COM, INC.
/s/ GREGORY J. IVERSON
Gregory J. Iverson
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 10.1
t0.COM, INC.
EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN
Adopted December 24, 2017
SECTION 1.
Purpose. The purpose of this t0.com, Inc. 2017 Equity Incentive Plan is to encourage ownership of Common Stock by
eligible Employees, Directors and Consultants of the Company and to provide increased incentive for such Employees, Directors and Consultants to render
services and to exert maximum effort for the business success of the Company. In addition, the Company expects that this Plan will further strengthen the
identification of Employees, Directors and Consultants with the shareholders. Options to be granted under this Plan are not intended to qualify as incentive
stock options pursuant to Section 422 of the Code.
SECTION 2.
(a)

Definitions.
“Administrator” means the Committee or the Board, as administrator of the Plan.

(b)
“Affiliate” means, at the time of determination, any “parent” or “subsidiary” of the Company as such terms are defined in Rule
405. The Board will have the authority to determine the time or times at which “parent” or “subsidiary” status is determined within the foregoing
definition.
(c)
“Applicable Laws” means the requirements related to or implicated by the administration of the Plan under applicable state
corporate law, United States federal and state securities laws, the Code and the applicable laws of any foreign country or jurisdiction where Awards
are granted under the Plan.
(d)

“Award” means a Nonqualified Stock Option, Restricted Stock Award or Restricted Stock Unit Award granted under the Plan.

(e)
“Award Agreement” means a written agreement, contract, certificate or other instrument or document evidencing the terms and
conditions of an individual Award granted under the Plan which may, in the discretion of the Company, be transmitted electronically to any
Participant. Each Award Agreement shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan.
(f)

“Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company, as constituted at any time.

(g)

“Cause” means, unless the applicable Award Agreement provides otherwise:

(i)
If the Employee is a party to an employment or service agreement with the Company and such agreement provides for a
definition of Cause, the definition contained therein; or
(ii)
If no such agreement exists, or if such agreement does not define Cause: (A) failure to perform such duties as are
reasonably requested by the Board; (B) material breach of any agreement with the Company, or a material violation of the Company’s code
of conduct or other written policy; (C) commission of, or plea of guilty or no contest to, a felony or a crime involving moral turpitude or the
commission of any other act involving willful malfeasance or material fiduciary breach with respect to the Company; (D) use of illegal
drugs or abuse of alcohol that materially impairs the Participant’s ability to perform his or her duties to the Company; or (E) gross
negligence or willful misconduct with respect to the Company.
(h)

“Change in Control” means:

(i)
Overstock.com, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Overstock”), together with any entity or entities directly or indirectly
controlled by Overstock, becomes the legal or beneficial owner of a number of shares of stock of the Company having less than a majority
of the total voting power of the then outstanding stock of the Company; or
(ii)

a Qualified IPO.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, and only to the extent that an Award is subject to Section 409A of the Code and
payment of the Award pursuant to the application of the definition of “Change in Control” above would cause such Award not to otherwise
comply with Section 409A of the Code, payment of an Award may occur upon a “Change in Control” only to the extent that the event
constitutes a “change in

the ownership or effective control” of the Company or a “change in the ownership of a substantial portion of the assets” of the Company
under Section 409A of the Code and the applicable Internal Revenue Service and Treasury Department regulations thereunder.
(i)
“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as it may be amended from time to time. Any reference to a section of the
Code shall be deemed to include a reference to any regulations promulgated thereunder.
(j)
and Section 3(e).

“Committee” means a committee that may be appointed by the Board to administer the Plan in accordance with Section 3(d)

(k)

“Common Stock” means the common stock, $0.01 par value per share, of the Company.

(l)

“Company” means t0.com, Inc. a Utah corporation, and any successor thereto.

(m)
“Consultant” means any individual who is engaged by the Company to render consulting or advisory services for the
Company, whether or not compensated for such services.
(n)
“Continuous Service” means that the Participant’s service with the Company is not interrupted or terminated. If any Award is
subject to Section 409A of the Code, the determination of Continuous Service shall be made in a manner consistent with Section 409A of the Code.
The Administrator or its delegate, in its sole discretion, may determine whether Continuous Service shall be considered interrupted in the case of any
leave of absence approved by that party, including sick leave, military leave or any other personal or family leave of absence.
(o)
“Detrimental Activity” means any of the following: (i) unauthorized disclosure of any confidential or proprietary information
of the Company; (ii) any activity that would be grounds to terminate the Participant’s employment or service with the Company for cause; (iii) the
breach of any non-competition, non-solicitation, non-disparagement or other agreement containing restrictive covenants, with the Company; (iv)
fraud or conduct contributing to any financial restatements or irregularities, as determined by the Administrator in its sole discretion; or (v) any other
conduct or act determined to be materially injurious, detrimental or prejudicial to any interest of the Company, as determined by the Administrator
in its sole discretion.
(p)

“Director” means a member of the Board.

(q)

“Effective Date” shall mean the date as of which this Plan is adopted by the Board.

(r)

“Employee” means any person, including an officer, employed by, and providing direct services to, the Company.

(s)
“Fair Market Value” means, on a given date, (i) if there is a public market for the shares of Common Stock on such date, the
closing price of the shares as reported on such date on the principal national securities exchange on which the shares are listed or, if no sales of
shares have been reported on any national securities exchange, then the immediately preceding date on which sales of the shares have been so
reported or quoted, and (ii) if there is no public market for the shares of Common Stock on such date, then the fair market value shall be determined
by the Administrator in good faith after taking into consideration all factors which it deems appropriate, including, without limitation, Section 409A
of the Code, with the intention that Options granted under this Plan shall not constitute deferred compensation subject to Section 409A of the Code.
(t)
“Grant Date” means the date on which the Administrator adopts a resolution, or takes other appropriate action, expressly
granting an Award to a Participant that specifies the key terms and conditions of the Award or, if a later date is set forth in such resolution, then such
date as is set forth in such resolution.
(u)
“Option” means an option granted pursuant to the Plan that by its terms does not qualify or is not intended to qualify as an
incentive stock option under Section 422 of the Code.
(v)

“Option Exercise Price” means the price at which a share of Common Stock may be purchased upon the exercise of an Option.

(w)
“Participant” means an eligible person to whom an Award is granted pursuant to the Plan or, if applicable, such other person
who holds an outstanding Award.

(x)

“Plan” means this t0.com, Inc. 2017 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended and/or amended and restated from time to time.

(y)
“Qualified IPO” means a firm commitment underwritten public offering of the Company’s common stock pursuant to an
effective registration statement filed under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, with aggregate offering proceeds to the Company of not less than
$20 million (net of underwriting discounts and commissions) and a listing of the Common Stock on a national securities exchange.
(z)
Section 7.

“Restricted Stock Award” means an award of shares of Common Stock which is granted pursuant to the terms and conditions of

(aa)
“Restricted Stock Unit Award” means a right to receive shares of Common Stock which is granted pursuant to the terms and
conditions of Section 8.
SECTION 3.

Administration.

(a)
Authority of Administrator. The Plan shall be administered by the Administrator, which shall be the Committee or, in the
Board’s sole discretion, the Board. Subject to the terms of the Plan, the Committee’s charter and Applicable Laws, and in addition to other express
powers and authorization conferred by the Plan, the Administrator shall have the authority:
(i)
(ii)

to construe and interpret the Plan and apply its provisions;
to promulgate, amend, and rescind rules and regulations relating to the administration of the Plan;

(iii)

to authorize any person to execute, on behalf of the Company, any instrument required to carry out the purposes of the

(iv)

to delegate its authority to one or more officers of the Company;

Plan;

(v)
(vi)

to determine when Awards are to be granted under the Plan and the applicable Grant Date;
from time to time to select, subject to the limitations set forth in this Plan, those Participants to whom Awards shall be

granted;
(vii)

to determine the number of shares of Common Stock to be made subject to each Award;

(viii)
to prescribe the terms and conditions of each Award, including, without limitation, the medium of payment and
vesting provisions, and to specify the provisions of the Award Agreement relating to such grant;
(ix)
to amend any outstanding Awards, including for the purpose of modifying the time or manner of vesting, or the term
of any outstanding Award; provided, however, that if any such amendment impairs a Participant’s rights or increases a Participant’s
obligations under his or her Award or creates or increases a Participant’s federal income tax liability with respect to an Award, such
amendment shall also be subject to the Participant’s consent;
(x)
to determine the duration and purpose of leaves of absences which may be granted to a Participant without constituting
termination of their employment for purposes of the Plan, which periods shall be no shorter than the periods generally applicable to
Employees under the Company’s employment policies;
(xi)
to make decisions with respect to outstanding Awards that may become necessary upon a change in corporate control
or an event that triggers anti-dilution adjustments;
(xii)
to interpret, administer, reconcile any inconsistency in, correct any defect in and/or supply any omission in the Plan
and any instrument or agreement relating to, or Award granted under, the Plan; and
(xiii)
to exercise discretion to make any and all other determinations which it determines to be necessary or advisable for
the administration of the Plan.

(b)
Acquisitions and Other Transactions. The Administrator may, from time to time, assume outstanding awards granted by another
entity, whether in connection with an acquisition of such other entity or otherwise, by either (i) granting an Award under the Plan in replacement of
or in substitution for the award assumed by the Company, or (ii) treating the assumed award as if it had been granted under the Plan if the terms of
such assumed award could be applied to an Award granted under the Plan. Such assumed award shall be permissible if the holder of the assumed
award would have been eligible to be granted an Award hereunder if the other entity had applied the rules of this Plan to such grant. The
Administrator may also grant Awards under the Plan in settlement of or in substitution for outstanding awards or obligations to grant future awards
in connection with the Company or an affiliate acquiring another entity, an interest in another entity, or an additional interest in an affiliate whether
by merger, stock purchase, asset purchase or other form of transaction.
(c)
Administrator Decisions Final. All decisions made by the Administrator pursuant to the provisions of the Plan shall be final and
binding on the Company and the Participants, unless such decisions are determined by a court having jurisdiction to be arbitrary and capricious.
(d)
Delegation. The Administrator shall have the power to delegate to a subcommittee any of the administrative powers the
Administrator is authorized to exercise (and references in this Plan to the Administrator shall thereafter be to the committee or subcommittee),
subject, however, to such resolutions, not inconsistent with the provisions of the Plan, as may be adopted from time to time by the Board. If a
Committee serves as the Administrator, the Board may abolish such Committee at any time and revest in the Board the administration of the Plan.
The members of any Committee designated as Administrator shall be appointed by and serve at the pleasure of the Board. From time to time, the
Board may increase or decrease the size of the Committee, add additional members to, remove members (with or without cause) from, appoint new
members in substitution therefor, and fill vacancies, however caused, in the Committee. The Board or Committee, as applicable, shall act pursuant to
a vote of the majority of its members or, in the case of a Committee comprised of only two members, the unanimous consent of its members, whether
present or not, or by the written consent of the majority of its members and minutes shall be kept of all of its meetings and copies thereof shall be
provided to the Board. Subject to the limitations prescribed by the Plan and the Board, the Administrator may establish and follow such rules and
regulations for the conduct of its business as it may determine to be advisable.
(e)
Committee Composition. Except as otherwise determined by the Board, any Committee designated as Administrator shall
consist solely of two or more members of the Board appointed to the Committee from time to time by the Board.
(f)
Indemnification. In addition to such other rights of indemnification as they may have as members of the Board or the
Committee, and to the extent allowed by Applicable Laws, the Administrator shall be indemnified by the Company against the reasonable expenses,
including attorney’s fees, actually incurred in connection with any action, suit or proceeding or in connection with any appeal therein, to which the
Administrator may be party by reason of any action taken or failure to act under or in connection with the Plan or any Award granted under the Plan,
and against all amounts paid by the Administrator in settlement thereof (provided, however, that the settlement has been approved by the Company,
which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld) or paid by the Administrator in satisfaction of a judgment in any such action, suit or
proceeding, except in relation to matters as to which it shall be adjudged in such action, suit or proceeding that the Administrator did not act in
good faith and in a manner which such person reasonably believed to be in the best interests of the Company, or in the case of a criminal proceeding,
had no reason to believe that the conduct complained of was unlawful; provided, however, that within 60 days after institution of any such action,
suit or proceeding, the Administrator shall, in writing, offer the Company the opportunity at its own expense to handle and defend such action, suit
or proceeding.
SECTION 4.

Shares Subject to the Plan.

(a)
Subject to adjustment in accordance with Section 12, a total of 500 of the authorized shares of Common Stock shall be available
for the grant of Awards under the Plan.
(b)
Shares of Common Stock available for distribution under the Plan may consist, in whole or in part, of authorized and unissued
shares or treasury shares.
(c)
Shares of Common Stock shall be deemed to have been issued under the Plan only to the extent actually issued and delivered
pursuant to the exercise or settlement of an Award. Any shares of Common Stock subject to an Award that is cashed-out, canceled, forfeited or
expires prior to exercise or realization, either in full or in part, shall again become available for issuance under the Plan. Notwithstanding anything
to the contrary contained

herein: shares subject to an Award under the Plan shall not again be made available for issuance or delivery under the Plan if such shares are (i)
shares tendered in payment of an Award or (ii) shares delivered or withheld by the Company to satisfy any tax withholding obligation.
(d)
If the Administrator authorizes the assumption of awards pursuant to Section 3(b) or Section 13 hereof, the assumption will
reduce the number of shares available for issuance under the Plan in the same manner as if the assumed awards had been granted under the Plan.
SECTION 5.
Eligibility. Awards may be granted to Employees, Directors and Consultants. A Participant must be an Employee,
Director or Consultant at the time the Award is granted. An Employee, Director or Consultant who has been granted an Award hereunder may be granted an
additional Award or Awards, if the Administrator shall so determine.
SECTION 6.
Option Provisions. Each Option granted under the Plan shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement. Each Option so
granted shall be subject to the conditions set forth in this Section 6, and to such other conditions not inconsistent with the Plan as may be reflected in the
applicable Award Agreement. The Company shall have no liability to any Participant or any other person if an Option is determined to constitute
“nonqualified deferred compensation” within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code and the terms of such Option do not satisfy the requirements of
Section 409A of the Code. The provisions of separate Options need not be identical, but each Option shall include (through incorporation of provisions
hereof by reference in the Option or otherwise) the substance of each of the following provisions:
(a)
Term. The term of an Option granted under the Plan shall be determined by the Administrator; provided, however, no Option
shall be exercisable after the expiration of 15 years from the Grant Date.
(b)
Option Exercise Price. The Option Exercise Price of each Option shall be not less than 100% of the Fair Market Value of the
Common Stock subject to the Option on the Grant Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, an Option may be granted with an Option Exercise Price
lower than that set forth in the preceding sentence if such Option is granted pursuant to an assumption or substitution for another option in a manner
satisfying the provisions of Section 409A of the Code.
(c)
Method of Exercise. Options shall be exercised by the delivery by the Participant of written notice to the Secretary of the
Company setting forth the number of shares of Common Stock with respect to which the Option is being exercised. The Option Exercise Price shall
be paid, to the extent permitted by Applicable Laws, either (i) in cash or by certified or bank check at the time the Option is exercised or (ii) by any
of the following means: (A) by delivery to the Company of other shares of Common Stock, duly endorsed for transfer to the Company, with a Fair
Market Value on the date of delivery equal to the Option Exercise Price (or portion thereof) due for the number of shares being acquired; (B) by a
“net exercise” procedure effected by withholding the minimum number of shares of Common Stock otherwise issuable in respect of an Option that
are needed to pay the Option Exercise Price; (C) by any combination of the foregoing methods; or (D) in any other form of legal consideration that
may be reasonably acceptable to the Administrator. Unless otherwise specifically provided in the Option, the Option Exercise Price that is paid by
delivery to the Company of other Common Stock acquired, directly or indirectly from the Company, shall be paid only by shares of Common Stock
that have been held for more than six months (or such longer or shorter period of time required to avoid a charge to earnings for financial accounting
purposes).
Notice may also be delivered by fax provided that the Option Exercise Price of such shares is received by the Company via wire transfer on the
same day the fax transmission is received by the Company. The notice shall specify the address to which the certificates for such shares are to be mailed.
An Option shall be deemed to have been exercised immediately prior to the close of business on the date (i) written notice of such exercise and (ii)
payment in full of the Option Exercise Price for the number of shares for which Options are being exercised, are both received by the Company and the
Participant shall be treated for all purposes as the record holder of such shares of Common Stock as of such date. As promptly as practicable after receipt
of such written notice and payment, the Company shall deliver to the Participant certificates for the number of shares with respect to which such Option
has been so exercised, issued in the Participant’s name or such other name as the Participant directs; provided, however, that such delivery shall be
deemed effected for all purposes when a stock transfer agent of the Company shall have deposited such certificates in the United States mail, addressed to
the Participant at the address specified pursuant to this Section 6(c).
(d)
Transferability of an Option. An Option shall not be transferable except by will or by the laws of descent and distribution and
shall be exercisable during the lifetime of the Participant only by the Participant. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Participant may, by delivering
written notice to the Company, in a form satisfactory to the Company, designate a third party who, in the event of the death of the Participant, shall
thereafter be entitled to exercise the Option.

(e)
Vesting of Options. Each Option may, but need not, vest and therefore become exercisable in periodic installments that may, but
need not, be equal. The Option may be subject to such other terms and conditions on the time or times when it may be exercised (which may be
based on performance or other criteria) as the Administrator may deem appropriate. The vesting provisions of individual Options may vary. No
Option may be exercised for a fraction of a share of Common Stock. The Administrator may, but shall not be required to, provide for an acceleration
of vesting and exercisability in the terms of any Award Agreement upon the occurrence of a specified event.
(f)
Termination of Continuous Service. Unless otherwise provided in an Award Agreement or in an employment agreement between
a Participant and the Company, in the event a Participant’s Continuous Service terminates (other than upon the Participant’s death or disability), the
Participant may exercise his or her Option (to the extent that the Participant was entitled to exercise such Option as of the date of termination) but
only within such period of time ending on the earlier of (i) the date that is three (3) years following the termination of the Participant’s Continuous
Service or (ii) the expiration of the term of the Option as set forth in the Award Agreement; provided that, if the termination of Continuous Service is
by the Company for Cause, all outstanding Options (whether or not vested) shall immediately terminate and cease to be exercisable. If, after
termination, the Participant does not exercise his or her Option within the time specified in the Award Agreement, the Option shall terminate.
(g)
Disability of Participant. Unless otherwise provided in an Award Agreement, in the event that a Participant’s Continuous
Service terminates as a result of the Participant’s Disability, the Participant may exercise his or her Option (to the extent that the Participant was
entitled to exercise such Option as of the date of termination), but only within such period of time ending on the earlier of (i) the date twelve (12)
months following such termination or (ii) the expiration of the term of the Option as set forth in the Award Agreement. If, after termination, the
Participant does not exercise his or her Option within the time specified herein or in the Award Agreement, the Option shall terminate.
(h)
Death of Participant. Unless otherwise provided in an Award Agreement, in the event a Participant’s Continuous Service
terminates as a result of the Participant’s death, then the Option may be exercised (to the extent the Participant was entitled to exercise such Option
as of the date of death) by the Participant’s estate, by a person who acquired the right to exercise the Option by bequest or inheritance or by a person
designated to exercise the Option upon the Participant’s death, but only within the period ending on the earlier of (i) the date twelve (12) months
following the date of death or (ii) the expiration of the term of such Option as set forth in the Award Agreement. If, after the Participant’s death, the
Option is not exercised within the time specified herein or in the Award Agreement, the Option shall terminate.
(i)
Detrimental Activity. Unless otherwise provided in an Award Agreement, all outstanding Options (whether or not vested) shall
immediately terminate and cease to be exercisable on the date on which a Participant engages in Detrimental Activity.
(j)
No Rights as Shareholder. No Participant shall have any rights as a shareholder with respect to shares covered by an Option until
the Option is exercised by written notice and accompanied by payment as provided in Section 6(c).
SECTION 7.
Restricted Stock Awards. Each Award Agreement will be in such form and will contain such terms and conditions as
the Board deems appropriate. To the extent consistent with the Company’s bylaws, at the Board’s election, shares of Common Stock may be (x) held in book
entry form subject to the Company’s instructions until any restrictions relating to the Restricted Stock Award lapse; or (y) evidenced by a certificate, which
certificate will be held in such form and manner as determined by the Board. The terms and conditions of Award Agreements may change from time to time,
and the terms and conditions of separate Award Agreements need not be identical. Each Award Agreement will conform to (through incorporation of the
provisions hereof by reference in the agreement or otherwise) the substance of each of the following provisions:
(a)
Consideration. A Restricted Stock Award may be awarded in consideration for (A) cash, check, bank draft, electronic funds, wire
transfer or money order payable to the Company, (B) past services to the Company or an Affiliate or (C) any other form of legal consideration that
may be acceptable to the Board, in its sole discretion, and permissible under applicable law.
(b)
Vesting. Shares of Common Stock awarded under the Restricted Stock Award may be subject to forfeiture to the Company in
accordance with a vesting schedule (also referred to as a schedule for lapsing of the Company’s unvested share repurchase rights) to be determined
by the Board.

(c)
Termination of Participant’s Continuous Service. If a Participant’s Continuous Service terminates, the Company may receive
through a forfeiture condition or a repurchase right any or all of the shares of Common Stock held by the Participant that have not vested as of the
date of termination of Continuous Service under the terms of the Award Agreement.
(d)
Transferability. The right to acquire shares of Common Stock under a Restricted Stock Award will not be transferable by the
Participant. Once the shares of Common Stock are issued, the Board may allow the holder to transfer unvested shares, but only on the terms and
conditions in the Award Agreement, and only so long as the Common Stock awarded under the Award Agreement remains subject to the terms of the
Award Agreement in the hands of the recipient.
(e)
Dividends. In the absence of an Award Agreement expressly providing otherwise, any dividends paid on Restricted Stock will
be subject to the same vesting and forfeiture restrictions as apply to the shares subject to the Restricted Stock Award to which they relate.
SECTION 8.
Restricted Stock Unit Awards. Each Award Agreement will be in such form and will contain such terms and
conditions as the Board deems appropriate. The terms and conditions of Award Agreements may change from time to time, and the terms and conditions of
separate Award Agreements need not be identical. Each Award Agreement will conform to (through incorporation of the provisions hereof by reference in the
agreement or otherwise) the substance of each of the following provisions:
(a)
Consideration. At the time of grant of a Restricted Stock Unit Award, the Board will determine the consideration, if any, to be
paid by the Participant on delivery of each share of Common Stock subject to the Restricted Stock Unit Award. The consideration to be paid (if any)
by the Participant for each share of Common Stock subject to a Restricted Stock Unit Award may be paid in any form of legal consideration that may
be acceptable to the Board, in its sole discretion, and permissible under applicable law.
(b)
Vesting. At the time of the grant of a Restricted Stock Unit Award, the Board may impose such restrictions on or conditions to
the vesting of the Restricted Stock Unit Award as it, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate.
(c)
Payment. A Restricted Stock Unit Award may be settled by the delivery of shares of Common Stock, their cash equivalent, any
combination thereof or in any other form of consideration, as determined by the Board and contained in the Award Agreement.
(d)
Additional Restrictions. At the time of the grant of a Restricted Stock Unit Award, the Board, as it deems appropriate, may
impose such restrictions or conditions that delay the delivery of the shares of Common Stock (or their cash equivalent) subject to a Restricted Stock
Unit Award to a time after the vesting of such Restricted Stock Unit Award.
(e)
Dividend Equivalents. Dividend equivalents may be credited on shares of Common Stock covered by a Restricted Stock Unit
Award, as determined by the Board and contained in Award Agreement. At the sole discretion of the Board, such dividend equivalents may be
converted into additional shares of Common Stock covered by the Restricted Stock Unit Award in such manner as determined by the Board. Any
additional shares covered by the Restricted Stock Unit Award credited by reason of such dividend equivalents will be subject to all of the same
terms and conditions of the underlying Award Agreement to which they relate.
(f)
Termination of Participant’s Continuous Service. Except as otherwise provided in the applicable Award Agreement, the
unvested portion of the Restricted Stock Unit Award that has not vested will be forfeited on the Participant’s termination of Continuous Service.
SECTION 9.

Securities Law Compliance.

(a)
Securities Registration. No Awards shall be granted and no shares of Common Stock shall be issued and delivered under the
Plan unless and until the Company and/or the Participant have complied with all applicable federal and state registration, listing and/or
qualification requirements and all other requirements of law or of any regulatory agencies having jurisdiction.
(b)
Representations; Legends. The Administrator may, as a condition to the grant of any Award and the issuance of any shares of
Common Stock, require a Participant to (i) represent in writing that the shares of Common Stock received in connection with such Award are being
acquired for investment and not with a view to distribution,

and (ii) make such other representations and warranties as are deemed appropriate by counsel to the Company. Each certificate representing shares of
Common Stock acquired under the Plan shall bear a legend in such form as the Company reasonably deems appropriate.
SECTION 10.
Use of Proceeds. Proceeds from the sale of Common Stock pursuant to Awards, or upon exercise thereof, shall
constitute general funds of the Company.
SECTION 11.

Miscellaneous.

(a)
Acceleration of Exercisability and Vesting. The Administrator shall have the power to accelerate the time at which an Award
may first be exercised or the time during which an Award or any part thereof will vest in accordance with the Plan, notwithstanding the provisions in
the Award stating the time at which it may first be exercised or the time during which it will vest.
(b)
Shareholder Rights. Except as provided in the Plan or an Award Agreement, no Participant shall be deemed to be the holder of,
or to have any of the rights of a holder with respect to, any shares of Common Stock subject to an Award unless and until such Participant has
satisfied all requirements for exercise or settlement of the Award pursuant to its terms and no adjustment shall be made for dividends (ordinary or
extraordinary, whether in cash, securities or other property) or distributions of other rights for which the record date is prior to the date such Common
Stock certificate is issued, except as provided in Section 12 hereof.
(c)
No Employment or Other Service Rights. Nothing in the Plan or any instrument executed or Award granted pursuant thereto
shall confer upon any Participant any right to continue to serve the Company in the capacity in effect at the time the Award was granted or shall
affect the right of the Company to terminate (i) the employment of an Employee with or without notice and with or without Cause or (ii) the service
of a Director pursuant to the By-laws of the Company, and any applicable provisions of the corporate law of the state in which the Company is
incorporated, as the case may be. The cause of any termination of employment or service shall be determined by the Administrator, and its
determination shall be final.
(d)
Approved Leave of Absence. For purposes of the Plan, no termination of employment by an Employee shall be deemed to result
from an approved leave of absence for military service or sickness, or for any other purpose approved by the Company, if the Employee’s right to
reemployment is guaranteed either by a statute or by contract or under the policy pursuant to which the leave of absence was granted or if the
Administrator otherwise so provides in writing, in either case, except to the extent inconsistent with Section 409A of the Code if the applicable
Award is subject thereto.
(e)
Withholding Obligations. Subject to the discretion of the Administrator, a Participant may satisfy any federal, state or local tax
withholding obligation relating to the exercise or acquisition of Common Stock under an Award by any of the following means (in addition to the
Company’s right to withhold from any amount paid to the Participant by the Company) or by a combination of such means: (i) tendering a cash
payment; (ii) authorizing the Company to withhold shares of Common Stock from the shares of Common Stock otherwise issuable to the Participant
as a result of the exercise or acquisition of Common Stock under the Award, provided, however, that no shares of Common Stock are withheld with a
value exceeding the minimum amount of tax required to be withheld by law; or (iii) delivering to the Company previously owned and
unencumbered shares of Common Stock of the Company.
SECTION 12.
Adjustment Upon Changes in Stock. In the event of changes in the outstanding Common Stock or in the capital
structure of the Company by reason of any stock or extraordinary cash dividend, stock split, reverse stock split, an extraordinary corporate transaction such as
any recapitalization, reorganization, merger, consolidation, combination, exchange, or other relevant change in capitalization occurring after the Grant Date
of any Award, Awards granted under the Plan and any Award Agreements, the exercise price of Options and the maximum number of shares of Common Stock
subject to Awards stated in Section 4 will be equitably adjusted or substituted, as to the number, price or kind of a share of Common Stock or other
consideration subject to such Awards to the extent necessary to preserve the economic intent of such Award. In the case of adjustments made pursuant to this
Section 12, unless the Administrator reasonably determines that such adjustment is in the best interests of the Company, the Administrator shall ensure that
any adjustments under this Section 12 will not constitute a modification of Options within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code. Except as hereinbefore
expressly provided, (a) the issuance by the Company of shares of stock or any class of securities convertible into shares of stock of any class, for cash,
property, labor or services, upon direct sale, upon the exercise of rights or warrants to subscribe therefor, or upon conversion of shares or obligations of the
Company convertible into such shares or other securities, (b) the payment of a dividend in property other than Common Stock, or (c) the occurrence of any
similar transaction, and in any case whether or not for fair value, shall

not affect, and no adjustment by reason thereof shall be made with respect to, the number of shares of Common Stock subject to Awards theretofore granted or
the purchase price per share, unless the Administrator shall reasonably determine, in its sole discretion, that an adjustment is necessary to provide equitable
treatment to Participants.
SECTION 13.
(a)

Effect of Change in Control.
In the event of a Change in Control:

(i)
the Administrator shall accelerate, vest or cause the restrictions to lapse with respect to all or any portion of any Award
and the Award shall be deemed fully vested in accordance with the terms of the Plan as of immediately prior to the Change in Control; and
(ii)
the Administrator may provide written notice to Participants that for a period as determined by the Administrator prior
to the Change in Control, after accounting for the actions outlined in Section 11(a)(i), such Awards shall be exercisable, to the extent
applicable, as to all shares of Common Stock subject thereto and upon the occurrence of the Change in Control, any Awards not so
exercised shall terminate and be of no further force and effect.
(b)
The obligations of the Company under the Plan shall be binding upon any successor corporation or organization resulting from
the merger, consolidation or other reorganization of the Company, or upon any successor corporation or organization succeeding to all or
substantially all of the assets and business of the Company and its affiliates, taken as a whole.
SECTION 14.

Amendment of the Plan and Awards.

(a)
Amendment of the Plan. The Board at any time, and from time to time, may amend or terminate the Plan. However, except as
provided in Section 12 relating to adjustments upon changes in Common Stock and Section 14(c), no amendment shall be effective unless approved
by the shareholders of the Company to the extent shareholder approval is necessary to satisfy any Applicable Laws. At the time of such amendment,
the Board shall determine, upon advice from counsel, whether such amendment will be contingent on shareholder approval.
(b)

Shareholder Approval. The Board may, in its sole discretion, submit any other amendment to the Plan for shareholder approval.

(c)
Contemplated Amendments. It is expressly contemplated that the Board may amend the Plan in any respect the Board deems
necessary or advisable to provide eligible Employees with the maximum benefits provided or to be provided under the provisions of the Code and
the regulations promulgated thereunder relating to the nonqualified deferred compensation provisions of Section 409A of the Code and/or to bring
the Plan and/or Awards granted under it into compliance therewith.
(d)
No Impairment of Rights. Rights under any Award granted before amendment of the Plan shall not be impaired by any
amendment of the Plan unless (i) the Company requests the consent of the Participant and (ii) the Participant consents in writing.
(e)
Amendment of Awards. The Administrator at any time, and from time to time, may amend the terms of any one or more Awards;
provided, however, that the Administrator may not affect any amendment which would otherwise constitute an impairment of the rights under any
Award unless (i) the Company requests the consent of the Participant and (ii) the Participant consents in writing.
SECTION 15.

General Provisions.

(a)
Clawback; Forfeiture. Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Plan, the Administrator may, in its sole discretion, provide
in an Award Agreement or otherwise that the Administrator may cancel such Award if the Participant has engaged in or engages in any Detrimental
Activity. The Administrator may, in its sole discretion, also provide in an Award Agreement or otherwise that (i) if the Participant has engaged in or
engages in Detrimental Activity, the Participant will forfeit any gain realized on the vesting or settlement of any Award, and must repay the gain to
the Company and (ii) if the Participant receives any amount in excess of what the Participant should have received under the terms of the Award for
any reason (including, without limitation, by reason of a financial restatement, mistake in calculations or other administrative error), then the
Participant shall be required to repay any such excess amount to the Company. Without limiting the foregoing, all Awards shall be subject to
reduction, cancellation, forfeiture or recoupment to the extent necessary to comply with Applicable Laws, government regulation

or stock exchange listing requirement (or any policy adopted by the Company pursuant to any such law, government regulation or stock exchange
listing requirement).
(b)
Sub-plans. The Administrator may from time to time establish sub-plans under the Plan for purposes of satisfying blue sky,
securities, tax or other laws of various jurisdictions in which the Company intends to grant Awards. Any sub-plans shall contain such limitations and
other terms and conditions as the Administrator determines are necessary or desirable. All sub-plans shall be deemed a part of the Plan, but each subplan shall apply only to the Participants in the jurisdiction for which the sub-plan was designed.
(c)
Unfunded Plan. The Plan shall be unfunded. Neither the Company, the Board nor the Administrator shall be required to
establish any special or separate fund or to segregate any assets to assure the performance of its obligations under the Plan.
(d)

Recapitalizations. Each Award Agreement shall contain provisions required to reflect the provisions of Section 12.

(e)
Delivery. Upon settlement of an Award granted under this Plan, the Company shall issue Common Stock or pay any amounts
due within a reasonable period of time thereafter. Subject to any statutory or regulatory obligations the Company may otherwise have, for purposes
of this Plan, 30 days shall be considered a reasonable period of time.
(f)
No Fractional Shares. No fractional shares of Common Stock shall be issued or delivered pursuant to the Plan. The Administrator
shall determine whether cash, additional Awards or other securities or property shall be issued or paid in lieu of fractional shares of Common Stock
or whether any fractional shares should be rounded, forfeited or otherwise eliminated.
(g)
Other Provisions. The Award Agreements authorized under the Plan may contain such other provisions not inconsistent with
this Plan, including, without limitation, restrictions upon the exercise of the Awards, as the Administrator may deem advisable.
(h)
Section 409A. Unless otherwise expressly provided for in an Award Agreement, the Plan and Award Agreements will be
interpreted to the greatest extent possible in a manner that makes the Plan and the Awards granted hereunder exempt from Section 409A of the Code,
and, to the extent not so exempt, in compliance with Section 409A of the Code. Any payments described in the Plan that are due within the “shortterm deferral period” as defined in Section 409A of the Code shall not be treated as deferred compensation unless Applicable Laws require
otherwise. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Plan, to the extent required to avoid accelerated taxation and tax penalties under Section
409A of the Code, amounts that would otherwise be payable and benefits that would otherwise be provided pursuant to the Plan during the six (6)
month period immediately following a Participant’s termination of Continuous Service shall instead be paid on the first payroll date after the sixmonth anniversary of the Participant’s separation from service (or the Participant’s death, if earlier). Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither the
Company nor the Administrator shall have any obligation to take any action to prevent the assessment of any additional tax or penalty on any
Participant under Section 409A of the Code and neither the Company nor the Administrator will have any liability to any Participant for such tax or
penalty.
(i)
Right of Repurchase. An Award may include a provision whereby the Company may elect to repurchase all or any part of the
shares of Common Stock acquired by the Participant. The terms of any repurchase option shall be specified in the Award Agreement. Unless
otherwise determined by the Board and subject to compliance with applicable laws, the repurchase price for vested shares of Common Stock will be
the Fair Market Value of the shares of Common Stock on the date of repurchase and the repurchase price for unvested shares of Common Stock will
be the lower of (i) the Fair Market Value of the shares of Common Stock on the date of repurchase or (ii) their original purchase price. The Company
will not exercise its repurchase option until at least six (6) months (or such longer or shorter period of time necessary to avoid classification of the
Award as a liability for financial accounting purposes) have elapsed following delivery of shares of Common Stock subject to the Award, unless
otherwise specifically provided by the Board. The Board reserves the right to assign the Company's right of repurchase.
(j)
Right of First Refusal. An Award may also include a provision whereby the Company may elect to exercise a right of first refusal
following receipt of notice from the Participant of the intent to transfer all or any part of the shares of Common Stock received under the Award.
Except as expressly provided in this paragraph or in the

Award Agreement, such right of first refusal shall otherwise comply with any applicable provisions of the bylaws of the Company. The Board
reserves the right to assign the Company's right of first refusal.
(k)
Beneficiary Designation. Each Participant under the Plan may from time to time name any beneficiary or beneficiaries by whom
any right under the Plan is to be exercised in case of such Participant’s death. Each designation will revoke all prior designations by the same
Participant, shall be in a form reasonably prescribed by the Administrator and shall be effective only when filed by the Participant in writing with the
Company during the Participant’s lifetime.
(l)

Expenses. The costs of administering the Plan shall be paid by the Company.

(m)
Severability. If any of the provisions of the Plan or any Award Agreement is held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable,
whether in whole or in part, such provision shall be deemed modified to the extent, but only to the extent, of such invalidity, illegality or
unenforceability and the remaining provisions shall not be affected thereby.
(n)
Plan Headings. The headings in the Plan are for purposes of convenience only and are not intended to define or limit the
construction of the provisions hereof.
(o)
Non-Uniform Treatment. The Administrator’s determinations under the Plan need not be uniform and may be made by it
selectively among persons who are eligible to receive, or actually receive, Awards. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the
Administrator shall be entitled to make non-uniform and selective determinations, amendments and adjustments, and to enter into non-uniform and
selective Award Agreements.
SECTION 16.
Termination or Suspension of the Plan. The Plan shall terminate automatically on the date that is ten (10) years after
the Effective Date. No Award shall be granted pursuant to the Plan after such date, but Awards theretofore granted may extend beyond that date. The Board
may suspend or terminate the Plan at any earlier date pursuant to Section 14(a) hereof. No Awards may be granted under the Plan while the Plan is suspended
or after it is terminated.
SECTION 17.
Liability of Company. The Company and any affiliate which is in existence or hereafter comes into existence shall
not be liable to a Participant or other persons as to:
(a)
The non‑issuance or sale of shares as to which the Company has been unable to obtain from any regulatory body having
jurisdiction the authority deemed by the Company’s counsel to be necessary to the lawful issuance and sale of any shares hereunder; and
(b)
Any tax consequence expected, but not realized, by any Participant or other person due to the exercise or settlement of any
Award granted hereunder.
SECTION 18.
Choice of Law. The law of the State of New York shall govern all questions concerning the construction, validity
and interpretation of this Plan, without regard to such state’s conflict of law rules.
As adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company on December 24, 2017.

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Patrick M. Byrne, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Overstock.com, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
d. disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.
Date: May 8, 2018

/s/ PATRICK M. BYRNE
Patrick M. Byrne
Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Gregory J. Iverson, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Overstock.com, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
d. disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.
Date: May 8, 2018

/s/ GREGORY J. IVERSON
Gregory J. Iverson
Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial officer)

Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Patrick M. Byrne, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the Quarterly
Report of Overstock.com, Inc. on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2018 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as applicable, and that information contained in such Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition
and results of operations of Overstock.com, Inc.
Date: May 8, 2018

/s/ PATRICK M. BYRNE
Patrick M. Byrne
Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)

Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Gregory J. Iverson, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the Quarterly
Report of Overstock.com, Inc. on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2018 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as applicable, and that information contained in such Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition
and results of operations of Overstock.com, Inc.
Date: May 8, 2018

/s/ GREGORY J. IVERSON
Gregory J. Iverson
Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial officer)

